
 

 

 
 

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 
www.cherwell.gov.uk 

 

Committee: Executive 
 

Date:  Tuesday 6 December 2011 
 

Time: 6.30 pm 
 
Venue Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA 
 
Membership 
 

Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman) Councillor G A Reynolds (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Ken Atack Councillor Norman Bolster 
Councillor John Donaldson Councillor Michael Gibbard 
Councillor James Macnamara Councillor Nigel Morris 
Councillor D M Pickford Councillor Nicholas Turner 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence      
 
 

2. Declarations of Interest      
 
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest that they 
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 
 
 

3. Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting      
 
The Chairman to report on any requests to submit petitions or to address the 
meeting. 
 
 

4. Urgent Business      
 
The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business 
being admitted to the agenda. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
5. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4)    

 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 
2011. 
 
 

Strategy and Policy 
 

6. Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report   6.35 pm 
(Pages 5 - 14)   
 
Report of Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy 
 
Summary 
 
To seek approval of the Local Development Framework’s Annual Monitoring Report 
(AMR) for submission to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government, and to present the district’s current housing land supply position. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(1) Approve the Annual Monitoring Report for submission to the Secretary of 

State and authorise the Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy, in 
consultation with the Lead Member for Planning, to make any necessary 
minor amendments prior to submisison.  

 
(2) Note the district’s housing delivery position. 
 
(3) Authorise the preparation of a more detailed land supply update for approval 

by the Executive in February 2012. 
 
 

Value for Money and Performance 
 

7. Performance and Risk Management Framework 2011/12 Second Quarter 
Performance Report  (Pages 15 - 54)   6.45 pm 
 
Report of Head of Transformation and Corporate Performance Manager 
 
Summary 
 
This report covers the Council’s performance for the period 01 July to 30 September 
2011 as measured through the Performance Management Framework.  
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To note the many achievements referred to in paragraph 1.3. 



(2) To request that officers report in the third quarter on the items identified in 
paragraph 1.4 where performance was below target or there are emerging 
issues or risks.  

(3) To agree the recommendation in paragraphs 1.5 and 1.6 which notes the 
delivery of the improvement and value for money programme and requests 
that from the third quarter this update is replaced with a progress review 
tracking the transformation programme shared between Cherwell District 
Council and South Northamptonshire Council.  

(4) To agree the responses identified to issues raised in the end of year 
performance report in paragraph 2.1 or to request additional action or 
information. 

 
8. Draft Budget 1, Corporate Plan and Service Plans 2012 - 2013   6.55 pm 

(Pages 55 - 80)   
 
Report of Head of Finance and Procurement 
 
Summary 
 
The Council has to adopt a budget for 2012/13 as the basis for calculating its level 
of Council Tax and has to base that budget on its plans for service delivery during 
the year, recognising any changes in service demand that may arise in future years.  
This is the first of two opportunities that the Executive has to shape and refine the 
interaction between the Corporate Plan, the service plans that underpin the 
corporate plan and financial matters before the final budget is presented to the 
Council on the 27 February 2012. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to: 

 

(1) Endorse the draft Council Business Plan and Strategic Priorities for 2012-13 
(detailed in Appendix 2); 

 
(2) Endorse the proposed service priorities for 2012-13 (detailed in Appendix 3); 
 
(3) Consider the draft budget (detailed in Appendix 1) in the context of the 

Council’s service objectives and strategic priorities;  
 
(4) Note the areas of revenue growth as detailed in the body of this report 

detailed in Appendix 1 – Para 1.21; 
 
(5) Note the areas of additional income or cost reductions that will be considered 

in order to get to a balanced 2012/13 budget detailed in Appendix 1 – Para  
1.26 

 
(6) Note the recommendations of the scrutiny reviews of discretionary 

expenditure and the capital programme that were considered at the 
Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board on 22 November 2011 and 
detailed in Appendix 4. 

 



(7) Advise of any other matters they would like taken into consideration in 
producing a balanced budget for the meeting of the Executive on 6th 
February 2012; 

 
(8) Endorse the draft revenue and council business plan as the basis for 

consultation. 
 
 

Urgent Business 
 

9. Urgent Business      
 
Any other items which the Chairman has decided is urgent. 
 

(Meeting scheduled to close at 7.15 pm) 
 
 

 

Information about this Agenda 
 
Apologies for Absence  
Apologies for absence should be notified to democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk or (01295) 
221589 prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the 
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item. The definition of personal 
and prejudicial interests is set out in Part 5 Section A of the constitution. The Democratic 
Support Officer will have a copy available for inspection at all meetings. 
 
Personal Interest: Members must declare the interest but may stay in the room, debate 
and vote on the issue. 
 
Prejudicial Interest: Member must withdraw from the meeting room and should inform 
the Chairman accordingly. 
 
With the exception of the some very specific circumstances, a Member with a personal 
interest also has a prejudicial interest if it is one which a Member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to 
prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.   
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 
Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the nearest 
available fire exit.  Members and visitors should proceed to the car park as directed by 
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.  



 
Access to Meetings 
 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or 
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 
 
Mobile Phones 
 
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off. 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
 
Please contact Natasha Clark, Legal and Democratic Services natasha.clark@cherwell-
dc.gov.uk (01295) 221589  
 
Sue Smith 
Chief Executive 
 
Published on Monday 28 November 2011 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Cherwell District Council 
 

Executive 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Executive held at Bodicote House, Bodicote, 
Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 7 November 2011 at 6.30 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman)  

Councillor G A Reynolds (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 Councillor Ken Atack 
Councillor Norman Bolster 
Councillor John Donaldson 
Councillor Michael Gibbard 
Councillor James Macnamara 
Councillor Nigel Morris 
Councillor D M Pickford 
Councillor Nicholas Turner 
 

 
Also 
Present: 

Councillor Leslie F Sibley 
Councillor Tim Emptage 
Councillor Lawrie Stratford (for agenda item 6) 
 

 
Officers: Sue Smith, Chief Executive 

Karen Curtin, Head of Service 3 
John Hoad, Head of Service 8 (for agenda item 6) 
Kevin Lane, Head of Service 4 / Monitoring Officer 
Martyn Swann, Strategic Housing Manager (for agenda item 6) 
Helen Town, Strategic Housing Officer (for agenda item 6) 
Natasha Clark, Senior Democratic and Scrutiny Officer 
 

 
 
 

56 Declarations of Interest  
 
Members declared interests in the following agenda items: 
 
6. Award of Contract for the Provision of the following Voluntary 
Services to Cherwell District Council: 1) Debt and Money Advice; 2) 
Services to Increase Volunteering; 3) Voluntary Driving Service. 
Councillor John Donaldson, Personal, as the council's appointed elected 
member representative to Cherwell Community and Voluntary Services 
(CCVS) and the WRVS and as his wife is an employee of Age Concern UK. 
 
Councillor Ken Atack, Personal, as the council's elected member 
representative to Cherwell Community and Voluntary Services (CCVS) and 
the Oxfordshire Rural Community Council (ORCC) and through this 
appointment a board member of this organisation. 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Executive - 7 November 2011 

  

Councillor Lawrie Stratford, Personal, as Chairman of Trustees for Bicester 
Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB). 
 
 

57 Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting  
 
There were no petitions or requests to address the meeting. 
 
 

58 Urgent Business  
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 
 

59 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2011 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

60 Award of Contract for the Provision of the following Voluntary Services 
to Cherwell District Council: 1) Debt and Money Advice; 2) Services to 
Increase Volunteering; 3) Voluntary Driving Service  
 
Head of Service 8 submitted a report which sought approval for the award of a 
contract for the provision of voluntary services across three thematic areas: 
 

1. Debt and money advice  
2. Services to increase volunteering  
3. Voluntary driving services  

 
At the discretion of the Chairman Councillor Lawrie Stratford addressed 
Executive stressing the importance of transitional arrangements being put in 
place to ensure a smooth transfer and the need for post-transfer monitoring. 
 
Councillor Les Sibley, Leader of the Labour Group, addressed Executive 
commenting that there was a lack of clarity regarding the future of voluntary 
organisations which had previously relied on grants and querying if the 
reliance on volunteers was sustainable in the long term. 
 
Councillor Tim Emptage, Leader of the Liberal Democrats, addressed 
Executive querying the measures that would be put in place to ensure no cut 
in services. 
 
In response to the Members’ addresses, Head of Service 8 explained that the 
aim of the process which had been approved by Executive in May 2011 was 
to cease the existing funding arrangements of grants and to commission 
services through a tender process which adhered to EU regulations and the 
council’s contract procedure rules. He confirmed that there would be regular 
post-implementation monitoring and that officers were keen to work with the 
new commissioning arrangements regarding volunteers. It was acknowledged 
that the cessation of grants may impact on voluntary organisations and a 

Page 2



Executive - 7 November 2011 

  

report would be submitted to Executive in due course regarding the transport 
association and possible transfer to Oxfordshire County Council.  
 
The Chairman acknowledged that the process represented a fundamental 
change to service delivery and would have implications on voluntary 
organisations which had previously relied on grants. The council was 
protecting service delivery through the procurement of service specific 
deliverables to suit the specific needs of the district which represented better 
value for money. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That a contract for the provision of voluntary services across all three 

thematic and geographical areas be awarded to Banbury CAB, whose 
bid involves arrangements and partnerships with five other voluntary 
organisations, for a period of three years from 1 April 2012 with the 
option to extend by up to a further two years. 

 
(2) That the cessation of existing funding arrangements for organisations 

funded through the Council’s Voluntary Sector (Community 
Development) Grants Programme and Community Transport Grants 
Programme as from 31 March 2012 be confirmed. 

 
(3) That officers be requested to work with flexibility to ensure 

implementation of the underlying contract structures and to ensure the 
SLA reports evidence sub contractor performances and input to the 
new voluntary service ideals. 

 
Councillor Atack requested that his abstention from the vote be recorded. 
 
 

61 2011/12 Projected Revenue & Capital Outturn at 30 September 2011  
 
Head of Service 3 submitted a report which summarised the Council’s 
Revenue and Capital performance for the first six months of the financial year 
2011/12 and projections for the full 2011/12 period. These were measured by 
the budget monitoring function and reported via the Performance 
Management Framework (PMF) informing the 2011/12 budget process 
currently underway. The report also reviewed the treasury and procurement 
action plan performance for the first six months of 2011/12. 
 
Councillor Les Sibley, Leader of the Labour Group, addressed Executive 
regarding the financial performance update. In response to the address, the 
Lead Member for Financial Management confirmed that the council would 
recover all of the £6.5m it had invested in the failed Icelandic bank Glitnir. This 
money was not required for Capital schemes which would be considered 
through the usual process. Members thanked Head of Service 4, the Finance 
Team and Legal Officers for their hard work throughout the legal process. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the projected revenue & capital position at September 2011 be 

noted. 

Page 3



Executive - 7 November 2011 

  

 
(2) That the Capital Slippage of £5.853m from the 2011/12 capital 

programme be noted. 
 
(3) That the Quarter 2 performance against 2011/12 investment strategy 

be noted. 
 
(4) That the progress against the Procurement Action plan and the savings 

recorded be noted. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 7.37 pm 
 
 
 
 Chairman: 

 
 Date: 

 
 

Page 4



 

   

Executive 
 

Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report 
 

6 December 2011 
 

Report of Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To seek approval of the Local Development Framework’s Annual Monitoring Report 
(AMR) for submission to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government, and to present the district’s current housing land supply position. 
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(1) Approve the Annual Monitoring Report for submission to the Secretary of 

State and authorise the Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy, in 
consultation with the Lead Member for Planning, to make any necessary 
minor amendments prior to submisison.  

(2) Note the district’s housing delivery position. 

(3) Authorise the preparation of a more detailed land supply update for approval 
by the Executive in February 2012. 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 
 Introduction 
 
 
1.1 An Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) has been prepared for the period 01 

April 2010 to 31 March 2011.  It presents information on development that 
took place or was permitted over that period and provides a comprehensive 
review of housing land supply.  The AMR also reports on progress in 
preparing the Local Development Framework. 

1.2 A full paper copy of the AMR has not been attached to this report but is 
available electronically on the Council’s website.  A copy has also been 
placed in the Members’ Room. 

1.3 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



 

   

Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004 (as 
amended) require the Council to produce an AMR.  Upon approval by the 
Executive, it will form part of the Local Development Framework (LDF). 

1.4 The information contained in the AMR will be used to inform policy making 
for the LDF and in consultations on planning applications.  The Council is 
required to submit the AMR to the Secretary of State by 31 December 2011. 
It will be made publicly available but is not subject to consultation. 

Housing Supply 

1.5 The monitoring of housing supply is a key part of the AMR.  Planning Policy 
Statement 3 (PPS3) requires Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to maintain a 
five year rolling supply of deliverable sites and states (paragraph 71) that 
where this cannot be demonstrated they should consider planning 
applications favourably having regard to other policies and considerations in 
the PPS.  The draft National Planning Policy Framework proposes a 
continuation of the requirement to maintain a five-year land supply and 
suggests that the supply “…should include an additional allowance of at least 
20 per cent to ensure choice and competition in the market for land”. 

1.6 Maintaining such a housing supply is very difficult to achieve in the current 
market as it requires sufficient numbers of houses to be built within each five 
year period.  This has become problematic for many LPAs as the policy was 
devised at a time of housing ‘boom’ rather than for the current economic 
situation. 

1.7 When the 2009 AMR was presented to Members on 2 November 2009, it 
was reported that for first time the district did not have a 5 year land supply.  
Following that report a number of housing developments were permitted and 
several other deliverable sites came forward.  These fed into a 
comprehensive review of housing delivery and, on 01 November 2010, the 
district reported a return to a 5 year housing land supply position.  However, 
over the last year the district’s housing land supply position has continued to 
be very challenging. 

1.8 On 28 June 2011, two appeal decisions were received which supported the 
Council’s view at that time that the district had a five-year land supply.  
However, in August 2011, following a local inquiry, an appeal decision for 
140 homes on land south of Talisman Road, Bicester (09/01592/OUT) 
determined that Cherwell as a whole, and that part of the district lying within 
the South East Plan’s Central Oxfordshire sub-region, did not have a five-
year supply.  The Inspector’s conclusion was that “…the supply of 
deliverable housing sites is likely to be well below the 5.2 years advanced by 
the Council although probably not quite so low as the 3.9 years proffered by 
the Appellant.” 

1.9 A comprehensive review of housing land supply for the AMR updates this 
position, taking account of observations made by the Inspector, the up-to-
date position on all anticipated housing sites and current market conditions, 
which shape the ability of housebuilders to manage supply.  The conclusion 
is that despite the attempts of the Council to increase and maintain delivery, 
there is presently a significant shortage of deliverable housing sites.  This is 
largely a result of the effect of national economic conditions on housebuilding 
and lowered expectations for the delivery of major sites at Bankside 
(Banbury); Former RAF Upper Heyford, Gavray Drive (Bicester); and 

Page 6



 

   

Kingsmere (South West Bicester).   

1.10 It is the view of officers that the district now has a supply of 2.8 years for the 
period 2011-2016 and 2.9 years for the period 2012-2017 (see table at 
Appendix 1) and a shortfall in each five-year period of just under 1600 
homes.  Consequently, paragraph 71 of PPS3, requiring applications to be 
considered favourably, should be taken into account in development 
management decisions.  This position will now be reported to the Planning 
Committee as any further relevant planning applications for housing are 
considered. 

1.11 It should be noted that the district’s housing land supply calculations are 
based on a working figure of 13,400 (2006-2026), the requirement of the 
South East Plan.  The South East Plan continues to form part of the 
Development Plan, although the Government has now enacted powers for 
the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government to revoke the 
Regional Spatial Strategy, subject to procedural requirements and a current 
period of consultation.  Revocation is expected at some point in 2012.   

1.12 This figure will be reviewed as preparation of the LDF’s Core Strategy 
continues, having regard to emerging national policy and statutory 
requirements.  It is considered that at the present time, continuing to use the 
13,400 figure in housing land supply calculations is the most defendable 
position. 

1.13 Managing the Housing Land Supply Position 

1.14 Without careful management, the current housing land supply position 
leaves the district vulnerable to unplanned and speculative applications.  It is 
recommended that a detailed land supply update with policy advice be 
prepared to provide additional information for consideration in development 
management decisions.  Similar approaches have been taken forward in 
other authorities recently and have been successful in providing greater 
certainty for development management decisions.       

1.15 The land supply update will consider the whole district and will provide a 
more detailed framework and policy steer to inform any preferred distribution 
of residential development across the district.  This will consider distribution 
to Banbury, Bicester and the Rural Areas, reflecting the work undertaken 
previously for the Core Strategy to assess the sustainability of villages, and 
maintain the stated Council position of Banbury and Bicester as the preferred 
locations of growth.  The Cherwell rural areas integrated transport and land 
use study (CRAITLUS, 2009) assessed the villages to determine the most 
suitable locations for new housing.      

1.16 It is likely that the land supply update will also consider other factors, 
including those relevant to site release, whether additional sites may be 
needed, an understanding of constraints on sites, deliverability, 
consideration of previously unidentified sites (including windfalls), and 
consideration of relevant planning appeal decisions.     

1.17 The land supply update will also assist in providing a policy framework for 
the time up to the adoption of the Core Strategy.  The planning reforms will 
not change the requirement that decisions on planning applications must be 
made in accordance with the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  It is proposed that the Core Strategy be 

Page 7



 

   

prepared for Submission in July 2012, with public consultation on the Core 
Strategy taking place during April and May 2012.  This timetable will provide 
certainty for communities and developers as to the preferred locations of 
growth.    

1.18 Local Development Scheme / Local Development Framework 

1.19 Progress on the Core Strategy has been delayed over the past year due to 
the ongoing national review of planning policy and statutory requirements 
now resolved in the Localism (2011) Act.  Separate public consultation was 
undertaken on Planning Guidance on the Residential Amenity Impacts of 
Wind Turbine Development.  

1.20 Continued work on the evidence base for the LDF included further work on a 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment; a Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity 
Assessment; a Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment, a Habitat 
Regulations Assessment (Appropriate Assessment), a review of the 2006 
PPS6 (Retail) Assessment, and a review of the 2006 Employment Land 
Review. 

1.21 Further progress on the Core Strategy has been held up by the 
Government’s intention to revoke the Regional Spatial Strategy and the need 
for the Council to review aspects of policy formerly included in the South 
East Plan as well as parts of its LDF evidence base, particularly those 
relating to determining appropriate levels of housing growth for the plan 
period.  Changes to the plan making process and to national planning policy 
are also expected and the Local Development Scheme (programme) will be 
revised once the full implications of these changes are clear. 

1.22 All these matters will inform the completion of the Core Strategy ready for 
public consultation, following consideration by the Executive in April 2012.  

 
 Proposals 
 
1.23 It is proposed that the Annual Monitoring Report be approved, subject to any 

necessary minor amendments; that the change in the district’s housing land 
supply position be noted; and, that the preparation of a more detailed land 
supply update be undertaken for approval by the Executive in February 2012 

 
 Conclusion 
 
1.24     The Annual Monitoring Report provides important information to assist policy 

making and development control decision making and is a statutory 
mechanism for monitoring housing delivery.  Its most significant conclusion is 
that the district cannot report a 5 year housing land supply position.  Changes 
to the plan making process and to national planning policy are also expected 
and the Local Development Scheme (programme) will be revised once the full 
implications of these changes are clear. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

   

Background Information 

 
2.1  The AMR’s key findings include the following: 

Business Development and Town Centres 

• 22,756m² (gross) of business development (offices, industry, or storage 
and distribution) was completed in Cherwell during 2010-11 

• 2.66ha of employment land has been lost to other uses 

• 460m² (gross) of 'town centre uses' (shops, financial and professional 
services, offices and leisure) was completed in Banbury, Bicester and 
Kidlington centres, with 98,698m² (gross) completed across the district 

Housing 

• The district presently has a 2.8 year housing land supply for the period 
2011-2016 and a 2.9 year supply for the period 2012-2017 

• Housing completions (net) in 10/11 were 370 compared to the South 
East Plan requirement of 670 per annum 

• Total completions from 2006-2011 have been 2542 (an average of 
508 per annum) compared to a 5 year requirement of 3350,  

• 53% of housing completions (net) in 10/11 were on previously 
developed land 

• First completions are now being recorded at the Kingsmere (South 
West Bicester) urban extension but overall housing completions in 
11/12 are expected to be low with a projection of 222 excluding 
unidentified windfalls 

• Net affordable housing completions in 10/11 were 96 (126 including 
acquisitions) 

Other Areas 

• There have been no planning applications granted contrary to 
Environment Agency advice on flooding grounds 

• There has been a net loss of the area of Local Wildlife Site (formerly 
called County Wildlife Sites) in the district due to some areas being 
deselected. 

• There has been a decrease in the 'priority species' present within 
Cherwell although no change in the 'priority habitat' area.  Priority 
species and habitats are derived from the UK Biodiversity Action Plan 
and are a priority for biodiversity and conservation action 

• 18 renewable energy schemes have been permitted in 2010-11, an 
increase from 5 schemes in 2009-10 

• Most of the applicable non residential schemes recorded as complete 
during 2010-11 provided car parking equal to or below the maximum car 
parking standards 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



 

   

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 The key issues for consideration are the need to approve the Annual 

Monitoring Report to meet statutory requirements, to note the change in the 
district’s housing land supply position and the recommendation to prepare a 
land supply update. 

 
The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is 
believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One To accept the 2011 AMR, noting the district’s housing 

land supply position and agree that it should be submitted 
to the Secretary of State. 
 

Option Two To seek amendment of the 2011 AMR in consultation with 
the Lead Member for Planning before submission to the 
Secretary of State. 
 

Option Three To take any actions required by the Executive having 
considered the AMR, in addition to its submission to the 
Secretary of State with or without amendment. 
 

 
Consultations 

 

Lead Member for 
Planning (Cllr Michael 
Gibbard) 

Informal Briefing Noted 

 
Implications 

 

Financial: No significant direct financial implications arising from this 
report.  The work on collecting data and preparing the 
AMR is met within existing budgets.  There are risks of 
costs associated with unsuccessfully defending refusals of 
planning permission upon appeal particularly if the 
decisions made as a result of this report are not 
considered to be well founded. 

 Comments checked by Karen Muir, Corporate Systems 
Accountant, 01295 221559 

Legal: The Council is required by regulations to submit an 
Annual Monitoring Report by 31st December each year. 
The district’s housing land supply position and the 
requirements of Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing 
(PPS3) will often be material considerations in 
determining planning applications for residential 
development.  The reasons for the refusal of planning 
permission need to be reasonable and capable of being 
substantiated upon challenge. 

 Comments checked by Nigel Bell, Team Leader – 
Planning and Litigation, 01295 221687 

Page 10



 

   

Risk Management: The AMR provides information that could be material in 
refusal of planning permission for planning applications, 
particularly for residential developments that are contrary 
to policy.  The AMR must be robust to reduce the risk of 
the Council being unsuccessful in defending planning 
appeals and the associated risk of costs being awarded 
against the Council. 

 Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Corporate 
Performance Manager, 0300 0030113 

Equalities There are no equality issues arising from this report. 

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Strategic Priorities 

 
A District of Opportunity 
 
Executive Lead Member 

 
Councillor Michael Gibbard   
Lead Member for Planning 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 
 

Cherwell District Council Housing Land Supply Position 
(October 2011) 

Background Papers 

Annual Monitoring Report 2011 (draft) 

Report Author Adrian Colwell, Head of Spatial Planning  

Contact 
Information 

AMR – Amy Brent, Planning Officer, 

01295 221850 

Amy.Brent@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Housing Land Supply – David Peckford, Senior Planning 
Officer, 01295 221841 

David.Peckford@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



South East Plan Requirement

13,400

2006/07 2007/8 2008/9 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

A) South East Plan requirement annualised 

over 20 years 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670 670

B) Net additional dwellings completed in 

previous years 853 455 426 438 370

C) Cumulative net additional dwellings 

completed 853 1308 1734 2172 2542

D) Net projected completions for deliverable 

(available, suitable and achievable) sites
222 360 473 500 468 438 470 470 470 444 345 273 45 45 45

E) Supply over the next 5 year years from 

deliverable sites (5 year rolling supply going 

forward e.g. 11/12 to 16/17)
2023 2239 2349 2346 2316 2292 2199 2002 1577 1152 753 408 135 90 45

F) Net projected completions for other specific, 

developable sites (excluding other housing 

potential) 0 0 70 183 227 209 210 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G) Total projections for net additional dwellings 

in future years (projected completions for all 

deliverable and developable sites) (D+F) 222 360 543 683 695 647 680 570 470 444 345 273 45 45 45

H) Cumulative projections for net additional 

dwellings in future years (projected completions 

for all deliverable and developable sites) 222 582 1125 1808 2503 3150 3830 4400 4870 5314 5659 5932 5977 6022 6067

I) Cumulative shortfall or surplus in meeting 

South East Plan housing requirement 

183 -32 -276 -508 -808 -1256 -1566 -1693 -1680 -1655 -1678 -1668 -1768 -1968 -2194 -2519 -2916 -3541 -4166 -4791

J) Working annual requirement taking account 

of past completions (C) and projected 

completions for deliverable and developable 

sites (H)

670 660 672 686 702 724 760 790 811 823 836 856 879 923 998 1109 1300 1642 2441 4836

K) Current and future calculation of 5 year 

rolling supply of deliverable (available, suitable 

and achievable) sites (E) having regard to past 

completions C)  and (for fututre calculations) 

projected completions for deliverable and 

developable sites (H)

2.8 2.9 3.0 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.3 1.7 1.2 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0

CHERWELL DISTRICT COUNCIL HOUSING LAND SUPPLY POSITION (OCTOBER 2011)

COMPLETIONS PROJECTIONS

P
a
g
e
 1

3



P
a

g
e
 1

4

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

   

Executive 
 

Performance and Risk Management Framework 
2011/12 Second Quarter Performance Report  

 
6 December 2011 

 
Report of Head of Transformation and  

Corporate Performance Manager  
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
This report covers the Council’s performance for the period 01 July to 30 September 
2011 as measured through the Performance Management Framework.  
 

 
This report is public 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To note the many achievements referred to in paragraph 1.3. 

(2) To request that officers report in the third quarter on the items identified in 
paragraph 1.4 where performance was below target or there are emerging 
issues or risks.  

(3) To agree the recommendation in paragraphs 1.5 and 1.6 which notes the 
delivery of the improvement and value for money programme and requests 
that from the third quarter this update is replaced with a progress review 
tracking the transformation programme shared between Cherwell District 
Council and South Northamptonshire Council.  

(4) To agree the responses identified to issues raised in the end of year 
performance report in paragraph 2.1 or to request additional action or 
information. 

 
Executive Summary 

 
Introduction 

 
1.1 This is a report of the Council’s performance in the second quarter of 2011/12 

measured through the performance management framework.  Central to this 
is the Corporate Scorecard, which is made up of the Council’s priority 
performance targets.  The Corporate Scorecard covers key areas of 
performance, these are: performance against the Council’s 14 public pledges; 
financial performance, human resources performance and customer 
feedback.  

Agenda Item 7

Page 15



 

   

 
The scorecard also provides a wider summary of performance covering the 
Corporate Plan, Priority Service Indicators, the Corporate Improvement and 
Value for Money Programme, the Corporate Equalities Plan, Brighter Futures 
in Banbury (the Council’s work programme to address disadvantage in 
Banbury) and Significant Partnerships. The appendices to this report provide 
a detailed overview of performance in each of these areas. 
  
The Council continues to develop its integrated risk and performance 
management framework which means that performance and risk is monitored 
and reviewed as part of a single process. This report includes a review of all 
strategic, corporate and partnership risks.  
 
To measure performance we use a ‘traffic light’ system where Green is 100% 
of the target met, Amber 90% and above, and Red below 90% and detailed 
performance indicators and commentary is presented in the appendices to 
this report.   
 

1.2 It should be noted that although this is primarily a report of corporate 
performance the Council’s performance management framework also 
includes monitoring at the directorate level against service plans and 
strategies. The majority of operational performance issues are dealt with at 
service and directorate level. However significant service successes and 
issues are reported upwards and where appropriate included in this report.   

It is also important to note that during 2010/11 significant changes were made 
to the national performance management regime. As a result the statutory 
requirement to report on national indicators was withdrawn. The Council has 
fully reviewed its performance management framework and streamlined its 
reporting focusing on key areas of public priority, and the draft framework for 
2011/12 was agreed by Executive at their meeting on 7 March 2011.  
 
The Council remains committed to publically reporting its service and financial 
performance and continues to do so on a quarterly basis at Executive and by 
providing a monthly performance summary on the Cherwell District Council 
website. 

 
 
 Proposals 

 
1.3 We ask the Executive to note the significant progress made in delivering the 

Council’s objectives.  Particular highlights include:  

Cherwell: A District of Opportunity 

• Job clubs have taken place throughout the district with 5 events and 109 
people supported during September. Specialist events have focused on 
the needs of young people and local opportunities within the retail 
industry. Business support work is on going with the Cherwell Investment 
Partnership providing advice and support to local residents and business 
enquiries.  

• The Bicester Conservation Area Appraisal has been completed and four 
more appraisals are underway.  

Page 16



 

   

A Cleaner Greener Cherwell 

• The neighbourhood litter blitz programme is on track with events in 
Kidlington and Langford Village. 

• The number of Bring Bank facilities are increasing and satisfaction with 
local recycling facilities (as measured through the annual survey) 
continues to grow. 

A Safe, Healthy and Thriving Cherwell   

• The Council continues to offer support to the local voluntary sector 
through its voluntary sector forum. The work to commission advisory 
services and volunteering support from the local voluntary sector is 
underway and will result in an improved local offer. 

• The Council has a strong partnership with Age UK to provide a varied 
programme of activities for older people across the district. This 
programme is on track to deliver 40 sessions a month. This work supports 
the Council’s objectives to help older people remain active and 
independent within their local communities.    

An Accessible, Value for Money Council 

• The implementation of a shared senior management team between 
Cherwell District and South Northamptonshire Councils has resulted in 
significant savings for both authorities. These savings will help ensure the 
long term financial sustainability of both authorities and provide additional 
opportunities for further sharing and efficiencies which will help ensure the 
protection of frontline services.  

 

• The Council has completed its programme of customer satisfaction and 
budget consultation to inform the council’s budget and service priorities for 
2012/13. Additional public consultation events have taken place to ensure 
local views are heard with regards to planning (Bolton Road, the Core 
Strategy and Eco-Bicester) and also to inform service improvement for 
example within customer and leisure services.   

1.4 The performance management framework allows Councillors to monitor the 
progress made in delivering our objectives and to take action when 
performance is not satisfactory, risks to performance are identified or new 
issues arise.  There are a number of such items identified in this report and 
we recommend officers should report on the latest position, implications, and 
the action they are taking in the next quarterly performance report.  These 
are: 
 
Cherwell: A District of Opportunity  
 

• The Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme is reporting amber in this 
quarter due to significant change in project manager roles. This is 
being reviewed in the third quarter by the steering group and a full 
update will be provided in the next quarterly report.  

 
A Safe, Healthy and Thriving District  
 

• Progress with the disabled facilities grants programme has slowed 
due to a decline in the rate of occupational therapy referrals.  This 

Page 17



 

   

arises from resource and staffing pressures in the social services and 
health sectors.  Capital spend slippage may result. The issues are 
being kept under review.  

 
A Cleaner, Greener District  
 

• Customer satisfaction with street cleansing has seen a drop. As 
measured through the annual survey satisfaction in 2011 was 64% in 
comparison with 72% in 2010. However, service performance 
standards have been maintained and as such the drop in satisfaction 
was not expected. A review is being undertaken to identify any 
specific issues, for example local hotspots, and action required 

  
1.5 As part of its improvement strategy the Council has an Improvement and 

Value for Money Programme which covers a series of developmental reviews 
and value for money assessments to help deliver the medium term financial 
strategy. To date all value for money reviews have been completed, savings 
identified and reports agreed by Executive. These savings have informed the 
budget preparations for 2012/13. However, a number of the improvement 
reviews have been on hold pending the appointment of the shared 
management team with South Northamptonshire Council.   
 

1.6 This joint management team is now in post and the shared Programme 
Manager is developing a transformation programme that will cover all key 
improvement and development projects going forward across both Councils. 
As such it is recommended that the Council’s improvement programme report 
(contained within the quarterly performance updates to Executive) is replaced 
by a programme update. This programme update will appear as Appendix 4 
to the quarterly performance updates from the third quarter 2011/12. This 
report provides the final summary of performance against the improvement 
and value for money programme to the period 30th September 2011. 

 

Conclusion 
 

1.7 In this report we show that at the second quarter Council continues to make 
strong progress on delivering its ambitions to improve the services delivered 
to the public and against key projects and priorities.  Risks have been 
reviewed and the report highlights a small number of areas which the Council 
needs to keep under review to ensure targets are met. This report also 
identifies emerging issues which will be reported on in the next quarter. 
 

1.8 This report also highlights in-year developments reflecting the Council’s new 
shared management arrangements and makes recommendations to reflect 
these changes.  

 

 
Background Information 

 
2.1       Progress on issues raised in the last Executive performance review 
 

The Executive on 5 September 2011 requested progress reports on a number 
of issues identified in the first quarter performance report as areas where 
targets had not been met or where there were emerging issues. The position 
in relation to these is outlined below:  
 

Page 18



 

   

Cherwell: A District of Opportunity 
 

• Temporary accommodation: In quarter 1 it was reported that the number 
of households living in temporary accommodation had risen during June 
to 36 households against a predicted number of 33.  

 
In quarter 2 performance has moved from amber to green with 32 
households in temporary accommodation against a predicted number of 
33. Performance has improved due to targeting of social housing 
nominations, advisory and preventative work. However the numbers of people 
approaching the Council for assistance are still increasing and performance is 
being closely monitored. 

 

• Deliver 500 new homes: in quarter 1 performance against this target was 
off track with 32 completions against a target of 125.  

 
This issue has been reviewed in the context of national economic 
conditions and it is recognised that these continue to affect house 
building. There have also been delays in the delivery of major sites.  The 
Bankside development at Banbury has yet to start and the rate of delivery 
at Kingsmere (SW Bicester) is presently slower than anticipated.  It is 
possible that the projection of 500 dwellings for 11/12 will not be met.  
Officers are presently reviewing projections for the 2011 Annual 
Monitoring Report in the light of recent planning decisions and will be 
reporting to the Executive in December.  
 

A Safe, Healthy and Thriving District  
 

• Leisure centre usage: visitor figures are down in comparison to the same 
period as last year.  
 
The visitor figures have been reviewed by the service manager and 
contractor and a calculation error in the quarter 1 figures has been 
identified. This resulted in under recording of visits. This issue has now 
been rectified and training has been given to new staff to ensure correct 
recording in the future. 
 
Performance figures are now showing increased attendance at all centres. 
 
Attendance Summary for Leisure Centres: 

 
Centre Attendance 

September 2010 
 

Attendance 
September 2011 

Spiceball Leisure Centre  47,379 49,377 
Bicester Leisure Centre  26,484   27,885 
Kidlington Leisure Centre 18,124 18,850 

 
 
2.2      Overview of Performance 
 

Paragraphs 2.3 – 2.13 provide a more detailed summary of the Councils 
performance against its comprehensive performance and risk framework. The 
detailed performance indicators and commentary against each of these are 
contained within appendices one to eight. 

 
 

Page 19



 

   

2.3      Corporate Scorecard – Corporate Plan Pledges  
 

The Corporate Scorecard includes the 14 pledges which were included in the 
2011/12 Council Tax Leaflet which was sent to every household in Cherwell.  
Of these 12 are Green and 2 Amber.  These pledges directly reflect the 
Council’s four strategic priorities and public priorities.  
 
Successes 
 

• Reducing CO2 emissions: the council is showing a 5% reduction in CO2 
emissions in comparison to the same period last year. 
 

• The council is well on track to delivering its pledge to make savings of one 
million pounds.  

 

• Around 1000 homes in Bicester have taken up insulation offers.  
 
Issues 
 

• Recycling rates: for quarter 2 these are at 61% against a target of 60%. A 
number of promotional activities have taken place and whilst it is 
anticipated that performance will remain on track the target is being kept 
under review.  
 

• Customer satisfaction: the annual satisfaction survey has shown a 68% 
satisfaction rating for 2011. This is disappointing as the Council was 
aiming to sustain performance at the 2010 level of 73%. Given the 
national economic context and the impact of reduced funding some 
reduction can be accounted for. The Council remains committed to 
excellent customer satisfaction and improving access and customer 
service remains a priority and will be reflected in improvement plans going 
forward.  

 
2.4      Corporate Scorecard: Financial Performance  

 
There are two finance targets, relating to predicated variance against revenue 
and capital budgets. Both are Green. There are no issues of concern at this 
point. Work is well advanced in preparing the budget for 2012/13 including 
both public consultation and staff suggestions for savings.  The Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee has established a sub-group to consider budget options 
and their implications.  
 

2.5      Corporate Scorecard: Human Resources  
 
Three Human Resources indicators are monitored: staff turnover; days lost 
through sickness; and organisational resilience/staff satisfaction.  Turnover 
and sickness are both green. Staff resilience and satisfaction is currently 
reporting as amber. This should be measured through a staff survey which 
hasn’t yet been undertaken. This is due to opportunities now available to 
undertake a joint survey with South Northamptonshire Council as part of the 
shared arrangements which will result in more information collected with 
greater efficiency. The approach is currently being developed and an update 
will be provided in the next quarterly report.  
 
 
 

Page 20



 

   

2.6      Corporate Scorecard – Customer Feedback 
 

Three key measures are covered: speed of telephone response, customer 
satisfaction as measured through bi-annual mystery shopping and customer 
complaints. All measures are on track with mystery shopping scheduled to 
take place in quarter 4.  
 
Successes 

 

• Telephony performance has continued to show improved performance. 
Building on success in the last quarter the performance target has now 
been strengthened with a target of answering all calls within 1 minute.  
 
Details in Appendix 3 

 

2.7       Corporate Plan  
 
The corporate plan is made up of 39 priority performance targets under the 
Councils four strategic priorities. In this quarter good progress has been made 
in a number of areas:  
 
Successes 

 

• In spite of the challenging economic situation there remain no cases of 
repeat homelessness this year, preventative work continues.  

 

• The time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit new 
claims and change events is within target at 8.48 days against a target of 
11. 

 

• Public consultation on proposals to redevelop the Bolton Road area in 
Banbury is underway and has received good levels of media attention.  

 
The Council’s annual customer satisfaction survey has been completed. This 
year the general trend is one of consolidation with many service areas not 
showing statistically significant changes. However some areas have shown 
noticeable improvement including the food waste recycling scheme as it 
becomes established across the district and the improvement trend for 
satisfaction with leisure centres continues.  
 
Areas which have seen a significant drop include car parking, which reflects 
changes to charges over the period and also street cleansing. As outlined in 
paragraph 1.4 this was not anticipated as general performance in the service 
has not declined. Causes are being investigated. 
 
Summary of customer satisfaction rates in 2011.  

 
% very/fairly satisfied Service  

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 

Recycling centres  88 87 86 83 77 

Household recycling service  82 83 78 75 76 

Food and garden waste collection  80 76 N/A  N/A  N/A  

Local area as a place to live  78 Not collected in previous years 

Page 21



 

   

Leisure facilities   74 71 68 63 58 

The way parks and open spaces are 
looked after  

72 74 73 70 71 

Street cleaning    64 72 67 66 63 

Leisure activities   56 Not collected in previous years 

Local car parking facilities  49 63 64 63 58 

Council’s approach to dealing with 
anti-social behaviour & nuisance   

43 44 36 36 30 

Council’s approach to dealing with 
environmental crime   

42 Not collected in previous years 

 
Details in Appendix 2 

 
2.8      Priority Service Indicators  

 
In addition to the corporate plan the Council has identified a set of 42 priority 
service indicators that reflect core service provision. Full details are included 
in appendix 2 but highlights include: 
 
Successes 
 

• Planning performance: processing of minor and other applications 
exceeds target for the second quarter, building on strong performance in 
the first quarter.  

 

• The percentage of council tax and business rates (NNDR) collected is 
above target for the quarter.  

 

• Recycling roadshows are taking place to encourage both recycling and 
actions to reduce carbon emissions and increase energy efficiency.  

 

• Both fear of crime measures (feeling safe at home after dark and walking 
in the town centre) are on target and comparable with last year’s 
performance.  

 

• Increasing participation: recent actions that will contribute to increasing 
participation in active recreation include, facilitating sports development 
groups (netball, badminton, golf, hockey, cricket and rugby) and 
establishing the Banbury Football Partnership. 

 
Issues  
 

• Planning: appeals and major applications. Both performance targets 
remain off track, however both have been reviewed by the senior 
management team. No underlying causes have been identified with 
regards to planning appeals and the Council remains committed to 
working with developers to ensure the quality of major applications is the 
focus rather than the speed.   

 
Details in Appendix 3 

 
2.9      Corporate Improvement and Value for Money Programme  

 
The improvement and value for money programme is an important part of the 
Council’s medium term financial strategy and improvement objectives. 
Projects within this programme aim to secure performance improvement and 

Page 22



 

   

efficiencies across the whole organisation.   
 
Successes 
 

• All value for money reviews have been completed and savings identified. 
These have been used to develop the 2012/13 budget, minimising the 
impact on front line services.  

 
Issues  
 

• The implementation of the shared management team for Cherwell and 
South Northamptonshire Councils has been completed. Given this new 
working arrangement a full review of significant programmes is being led 
by the Head of Transformation and the Programme Manager. This review 
is likely to result in a single shared approach to programme management 
that covers organisational development, the delivery of major strategic 
projects and the implementation of additional shared services and other 
activities to help ensure the long term financial sustainability of the 
Council.  
 
As such it is recommended in paragraph 1.5 and 1.6 of this report that the 
Improvement and Value for Money programme report is replaced by a 
single report covering the major transformation and development 
programmes for both authorities. This report will replace the improvement 
and value for money update included as appendix 4 from the third quarter 
onwards.  
 
It should be noted that a number of projects within the improvement 
programme have been reporting amber and have been delayed pending 
the implementation of the shared management team. During the third 
quarter these projects will be reviewed and developed as appropriate. 
Where they require significant cross council or departmental work they will 
be reflected in the new transform programme. 

 
Details in Appendix 4 

 
2.10     Corporate Equalities Plan  

 
The corporate equalities plan is a cross-council plan that aims to improve 
customer access, tackle inequality and disadvantage, build strong 
communities and improve community engagement. It also ensures that the 
Council is compliant with all equalities legislation.  
 
During the last year there have been a number of changes to the legislation 
and the Council’s plans and polices reflect this. As legislation changes 
Cherwell District Council equalities policies are reviewed. Second quarter 
performance is summarised below:  
 
Successes 
 

• The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has reviewed the equalities work 
programme and self assessment and recommended it to Executive. 
Additional items to be included in the work plan include ensuring the 
Council responds to the needs of the armed forces community.  

 

• The equality panel met and tested the council’s payment kiosks and 

Page 23



 

   

proposals for the new Council website. Positive suggestions were 
received from a range of community members.   

 

• A successful event was held with members of the deaf community 
highlighting issues with regards to people whose first language is sign 
language. The Council is working with a local company to improve speed 
of access to sign language for deaf customers and at a lower cost. The 
customer services team is also working with community volunteers to 
provide free translation services for non-English speakers.  

 
Issues 
 

• There is an on-going requirement to ensure that the impact of any 
changes to services, especially where there is a financial implication is 
analysed as set out in the equalities legislation. Managers have been 
reminded to undertake these reviews and they are published on the 
council website.   

 
Details in Appendix 5 

 
2.11     Brighter Futures in Banbury  

 
The Brighter Futures in Banbury programme is a long term and strategic 
priority for the Council and the Cherwell Local Strategic Partnership. It is part 
of a wider county approach to break the cycle of deprivation and tackle 
disadvantage. In Banbury the programme aims to address five key themes: 
 

• Improving financial and employment support  

• Improving educational attainment and the aspirations of young people  

• Improving housing and the local environment  

• Improving health and wellbeing  

• Supporting the development of safe and strong communities 
 
Successes  
 

• Connecting communities: a successful event was held in Grimsbury 
during September, partners from all agencies were involved and customer 
service outreach workers were available to provide advice, activities for 
young people were also provided and local councillors were in 
attendance.  
 

• The early intervention hubs (providing community support services for 
families and children) have been launched with open days held at 
Woodgreen in Banbury.  

 

• The Miller Road self build project is on track with 8 of the young people in 
the first cohort (i.e. young people not in employment, education or 
training) having secured employment, apprenticeships or training 
placements. 

 

• Crime rates in the Brighter Futures wards continue to drop and a 
successful neighbourhood action meeting has been held to encourage 
community involvement in community safety work.  

 
 
 

Page 24



 

   

Issues 
 

• As noted in paragraph 1.4 of this report personnel changes to the project 
managers running the programme have meant that there has been some 
delay in activities. However, project leads are being reviewed and senior 
commitment to the programme remains strong. The steering group will 
meet in the third quarter to resolve any outstanding issues.  

 
Details in Appendix 6 

 
2.12     Significant Partnerships  

The Council has identified 18 partnerships as significant due to the level of 
resources involved, and the impact on the local community.  Many of the most 
significant and difficult issues we face, crime, the environment, economic 
development, can only be tackled if agencies work together.  Of these 
partnerships 8 are county wide (including the County Local Strategic 
Partnership and its supporting thematic partnerships) the remaining 
partnerships are specific to the Cherwell district and directly support our 
strategic priorities.  

Successes  

• The Cherwell Local Strategic Partnership has set out a process for 
allocation its remaining LAA grant funds and at its September meeting 
agreed to support two projects. Establishing a Community Land Trust for 
Cherwell and allocating £25,000 of its capital fund to help set up the trust 
and supporting the development of community websites and developing 
ICT skills for young local residents with a £12,000 grant.  

Details in Appendix 7 

2.13    Strategic, Partnership and Corporate Risks  
 
In order to effectively manage its performance and resources the Council 
needs to be aware of the risks it faces, the impact they may have on the 
delivery of strategic properties and to have arrangements in place to manage 
these.   
 
21 strategic, corporate and partnership risks are identified on the register and 
they are reviewed on a monthly basis. The risk register is also subject to a 
fundamental review by the management team on an annual basis. 
Operational and service risks are reviewed at the directorate and service level 
and escalated to the strategic risk register where appropriate. The Accounts, 
Audit and Risk Committee also monitors the strategic, partnership and 
corporate risk registers. 
 
Status this quarter 
 

• All current strategic, corporate and partnership risks and mitigation actions 
have been reviewed and updated on a monthly basis during the second 
quarter.  
 

• Risks that have improved (i.e. the impact/likelihood has decreased) in 
rating this quarter include: the Local Development Framework with 
consultation on the revised core strategy approved.  

 

Page 25



 

   

• Risks that have worsened (i.e. the impact/likelihood has increased) in 
rating this quarter include: deprivation and health inequalities (this is 
subject to review given the new shared management arrangements at 
Cherwell and South Northants Councils); Information and 
Communications Technology, again in relation to increased workflow and 
complexity relating to the shared management arrangements bedding in 
and the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP). The LSP risk has increased 
due to additional funding now available to the Board, this means that 
additional work can be commissioned and inevitably the risks associated 
with this have been reviewed.  

 

• There are no additional issues arising with regards to any of our strategic, 
corporate or partnership risks. However, all risks continue to be reviewed 
in the light of changing policy, budgetary requirements and constraints. 
Where risks have worsened actions are in place to mitigate or control the 
impact and likelihood. 

 

• The internal audit of risk management has commenced and the Accounts, 
Audit and Risk Committee will review its results at their meeting in 
December 2011.  
 
Details in Appendix 8 

 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 This report presents the Council’s performance against its corporate 

scorecard for the second quarter of 2011/12. It includes an overview of 
successes, areas for improvement and emerging issues to be considered.   

 
The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is 
believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One (1) To note the many achievements referred to in 

paragraph 1.3. 

(2) To request that officers report in the third quarter on 
the items identified in paragraph 1.4 where 
performance was below target or there are emerging 
issues or risks..  

(3) To agree the recommendation in paragraphs 1.5 and 
1.6 which notes the delivery of the improvement and 
value for money programme and requests that from 
the third quarter this update is replaced with a 
progress review tracking the transformation 
programme shared between Cherwell District Council 
and South Northamptonshire Council.  

(4) To agree the responses identified to issues raised in 
the end of year performance report in paragraph 2.1 or 
to request additional action or information. 

Option Two To identify any additional issues for further consideration or 
review.  

 

Page 26



 

   

Consultations 

 

No specific consultation on this report is required. However, it should be noted that 
several indicators are based on public consultation or customer feedback.   

 
Implications 

 

Financial: Financial Effects – The resource required to operate the 
Performance Management Framework is contained within 
existing budgets. However the information presented may 
lead to decisions that have financial implications. These will 
be viewed in the context of the Medium Term Plan & Financial 
Strategy and the annual Service & Financial Planning 
process. 
 

Efficiency Savings – There are none arising directly from this 
report. 

 Comments checked by Karen Curtin, Head of Finance and 
Procurement, Tel: 0300 0030106, 
karen.curtin@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk  

Legal: There are no legal issues arising from this report.  

 Comments checked by Kevin Lane, Head of Law and 
Governance, Tel: 0300 0030107, 
kevin.lane@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 

Risk Management: The purpose of the Performance Management Framework is 
to enable the Council to deliver its strategic objectives.  All 
managers are required to identify and manage the risks 
associated with achieving this.  All risks are logged on the 
Risk Register and there is an update on managing risks 
recorded at least quarterly.   

 The author of this report is responsible for risk management. 

Data Quality: Data for performance against all indicators has been collected 
and calculated using agreed methodologies and in 
accordance with Performance Indicator Definition Records 
(PIDRs) drawn up by accountable officers. The council’s 
performance management software has been used to gather 
and report performance data in line with performance 
reporting procedures. 

 Comments checked by Ros Holloway, Performance and Risk 
Officer, 01295 221801 

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 

 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
The Performance Management Framework covers all of the Council’s Strategic 
Priorities  
 

Page 27



 

   

Executive Lead Member 

 
Councillor Nigel Morris    
Lead Member for Change 

 
Document Information 

 
Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 
Appendix 2 
Appendix 3 
Appendix 4 
Appendix 5 
Appendix 6 
Appendix 7 
Appendix 8 

Corporate Scorecard 2011/12 
Corporate Plan 
Priority Service Indicators 
Corporate Improvement and Value for Money Programme  
Corporate Equalities Plan  
Brighter Futures in Banbury  
Significant Partnerships  
Strategic, Corporate and Partnership Risks  

Background Papers 

None  

Report Author Claire Taylor, Corporate Performance Manager  

Contact 
Information 

Tel: 0300 0030113 
claire.taylor@cherwelland southnorthants.gov.uk 

 

Page 28



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

  
T
o
ta

l 
G

R
E
E
N

2
0

1
8

  
A
M

B
E
R

1
3

  
R
E
D

0
1

  
N
O

 D
A
T
A
 (
N
/A

)
1

0

M
e
a
s
u
re

 D
e
fi
n
it
io

n
R
e
p
o
rt
in

g
 

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

2

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

n
o
t 
in
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

D
e
liv
e
r 
1
0
0
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
m
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

S
ta
rt
 b
u
ild
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 s
h
o
p
s
 a
n
d
 c
in
e
m
a
 i
n
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
T
o
w
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
a
te
 t
o
 a
b
o
v
e
 6
0
%
 

 M
o
n
th
ly

A
 

A

M
a
in
ta
in
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
 

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
R

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
a
rb
o
n
 f
o
o
tp
ri
n
t 
b
y
 i
n
s
ta
lli
n
g
 s
o
la
r 

p
a
n
e
ls
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
n
g
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
 o
u
r 

e
n
e
rg
y
 c
o
s
ts
 

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 e
n
e
rg
y
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
s
 

a
n
d
 e
n
a
b
le
 m
o
re
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 e
n
e
rg
y
 b
ill
s

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

D
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 E
c
o
-B
ic
e
s
te
r 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t.
 

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 l
o
w
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

A
ll 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
. 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ix
 u
n
it
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
t 
M
ilt
o
n
 R
o
a
d
, 

B
lo
x
h
a
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
a
s
s
in
g
to
n
 R
o
a
d
, 
Y
a
rn
to
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 m
o
v
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
rt
h
 o
f 
fi
v
e
 

p
h
a
s
e
s
 w
it
h
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
. 
  
 G
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
s
 o
f 
C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
D
C
 a
s
 a
n
 

in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 H
C
A
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
-l
e
d
 a
n
d
 

s
e
lf
-b
u
ild
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
 D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
tw
o
 B
u
ild
 e
v
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 

B
ic
e
s
te
r 
a
n
d
 o
v
e
r 
2
0
0
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 a
n
 i
n
te
re
s
t.

A
 S

a
fe

, 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 a

n
d
 T

h
ri
v
in

g
 D

is
tr
ic

t

 P
la
n
n
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 &

 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
a
te
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 a
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 6
1
%
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
h
a
lf
 h
a
lf
 y
e
a
r 
- 
th
is
 i
s
 a
 l
it
tl
e
 b
e
h
in
d
 p
la
n
 -
 m
a
n
y
 

o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

in
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
b
u
t 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
 l
it
tl
e
 b
e
h
in
d
 p
la
n
 

  
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e

  
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

  
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

  
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

  
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 &
 E
s
ta
te
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 P

le
d
g
e
s

C
o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

A
 D

is
tr
ic

t 
o
f 
O

p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y

In
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
re
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
ro
u
te
s
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 B
re
a
k
fa
s
t 
E
v
e
n
t 
(J
u
ly
),
 J
o
b
 C
lu
b
 s
p
e
c
ia
ls
 (
S
e
p
t)
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 E
v
e
n
t 
(S
e
p
t)
 a
ll 

p
ro
v
e
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l.
  
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 r
e
c
ru
it
e
d
 7
 A
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 

s
ta
rt
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.

W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 s
ta
rt
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
w
 v
e
ry
 l
it
tl
e
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
th
is
 

o
c
c
u
rr
in
g
.

A
 C

le
a
n
e
r,
 G

re
e
n
e
r 
C
h
e
rw

e
ll
 

A
ro
u
n
d
 1
0
0
0
 h
o
m
e
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 u
p
 i
n
s
u
la
ti
o
n
 d
e
a
ls
 i
n
 B
ic
e
s
te
r

A
ll 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 o
r 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
.

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 a
n
d
 

in
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
.

  
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 s
h
o
w
 a
 d
ro
p
 i
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
tr
e
e
t 
c
le
a
n
s
in
g
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 o
th
e
r 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a
re
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 g
o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
, 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 c
a
u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 d
ro
p
.

C
O
2
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 a
ro
u
n
d
 5
%
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 i
n
 1
0
/1
1

  
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

  
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

  
R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 H
e
a
lt
h

  
S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
,

  
U
rb
a
n
 &
 R
u
ra
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

A
ll 
c
ri
m
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in
 b
e
lo
w
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
rs
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 d
ro
p
 i
n
 S
e
ri
o
u
s
 

A
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 C
ri
m
e
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r.

Page 29



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

  
T
o
ta

l 
G

R
E
E
N

2
0

1
8

  
A
M

B
E
R

1
3

  
R
E
D

0
1

  
N
O

 D
A
T
A
 (
N
/A

)
1

0

M
e
a
s
u
re

 D
e
fi
n
it
io

n
R
e
p
o
rt
in

g
 

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

2

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

S
e
c
u
re
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
a
t 
le
a
s
t 
£
1
m
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

o
u
r 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

Im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
b
o
u
t 
o
u
r 

c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
, 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ll 

it
e
m
s
 o
f 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
v
e
r 
£
5
0
0

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

M
a
in
ta
in
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

G
A

 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 o
n
lin
e

 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
  
a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

  
P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

  
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 (
+
2
%
/-
5
%
)

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

  
P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

  
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
ro
fi
le
 (
+
2
%
/-
5
%
):
 O
th
e
r 
p
ro
js

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

  
S
ta
ff
 t
u
rn
o
v
e
r 
  
(v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
)

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

G
G

  
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

G
G

  
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 /
 S
ta
ff
 S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

n
/a

A

  
S
p
e
e
d
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 c
a
lls

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 a
  
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 m
y
s
te
ry
 s
h
o
p
p
e
rs
 s
u
rv
e
y

 M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

  
C
o
m
p
la
in
ts

M
o
n
th
ly

G
G

A
n
 A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 V

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 
M

o
n
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

S
ti
ll 
w
it
h
in
 t
a
rg
e
t 
- 
o
n
ly
 6
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 d
u
ri
n
g
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
.

P
e
n
d
in
g
 j
o
in
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
.

  
P
e
o
p
le
 &
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

  
P
e
o
p
le
 &
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 
S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

e
a
s
u
re

s

  
F
in
a
n
c
e

  
F
in
a
n
c
e

  
F
in
a
n
c
e

  
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  
&
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
y
s
te
m
s

T
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 d
e
c
lin
e
d
 f
ro
m
 7
3
%
 t
o
 6
8
%
. 
T
o
 s
o
m
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
th
is
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
o
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 b
y
 a
ll 
p
u
b
lic
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 l
o
c
a
lly
. 
In
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
s
 

m
a
n
y
 s
h
o
w
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
o
o
d
 w
a
s
te
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
.

  
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

  
&
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

P
la
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
£
1
m
 s
a
v
in
g
s

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 d
a
y
s
 s
ic
k
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 F
T
E
 =
 2
.7
1
 (
b
ro
k
e
n
 d
o
w
n
 a
s
 1
.5
6
 d
a
y
s
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 s
ic
k
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 1
.1
5
 d
a
y
s
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 s
ic
k
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
).
 

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 M

e
a
s
u
re

s

  
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  
&
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
y
s
te
m
s

P
ro
je
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
t 
y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 (
 +
2
%
 /
 -
5
%
)

P
ro
je
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
t 
y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 (
+
2
%
 /
 -
5
%
).

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 m
o
n
th
ly
. 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

  
P
e
o
p
le
 &
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

  
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

  
&
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

A
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 Q
3
. 
 I
T
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
m
o
re
 o
n
lin
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
s
 s
ta
rt
e
d

  
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  
&
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
y
s
te
m
s

  
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  
&
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
y
s
te
m
s

T
a
rg
e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r,
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
a
rg
e
t 
fr
o
m
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 1
 

m
in
u
te

1
2
 s
ta
g
e
 1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 &
 N
o
 O
m
b
u
d
s
m
a
n
. 
 3
 A
m
e
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 
3
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
; 
1
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 
1
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
&
 M
a
jo
r 
C
o
n
tr
o
ls
; 
1
 H
o
u
s
in
g
;

3
 U
rb
a
n
 &
 R
u
ra
l 

M
y
s
te
ry
 S
h
o
p
p
in
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
in
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 p
h
o
n
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 s
e
tt
le
d
 i
n
.

Page 30



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

  
T
o
ta

l 
G

R
E
E
N

2
0

1
8

  
A
M

B
E
R

1
3

  
R
E
D

0
1

  
N
O

 D
A
T
A
 (
N
/A

)
1

0

M
e
a
s
u
re

 D
e
fi
n
it
io

n
R
e
p
o
rt
in

g
 

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

2

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

R
e
d
 

A
m

b
e
r 

G
re

e
n

 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 :
 P
le
d
g
e
s

7
%

1
4
%

7
9
%

 M
o
n
th
ly

 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 (
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 P
le
d
g
e
s
)

5
%

1
2
%

8
3
%

 M
o
n
th
ly

 C
u
s
to
m
e
r,
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 H
R
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s

0
%

1
3
%

8
8
%

 M
o
n
th
ly

 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

9
%

1
2
%

7
9
%

 M
o
n
th
ly

 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

0
%

3
6
%

6
4
%

 M
o
n
th
ly

 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 P
la
n
 

0
%

8
%

9
2
%

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

 B
ri
g
h
te
r 
F
u
tu
re
s
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 

1
0
%

1
0
%

8
0
%

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

 S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

0
%

0
%

1
0
0
%

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

A
ll 
ri
s
k
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 a
re
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 

4
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 n
e
t 
ri
s
k
 o
c
c
u
rr
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
a
n
d
 l
a
s
t 
 -
 a
ll 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 m
in
o
r.
  
3
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 -
 1
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s
lig
h
tl
y
,

O
f 
th
e
 1
0
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
is
 t
im
e
 8
 a
re
 G
re
e
n
, 
1
 i
s
 A
m
b
e
r,
 a
n
d
 1
 R
e
d
. 

R
is

k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 
- 
S
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

A
ll 
1
4
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 w
e
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 9
 w
e
re
 G
re
e
n
 a
n
d
 5
 w
e
re
 A
m
b
e
r.

A
ll 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 d
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 t
im
e
. 
 O
f 
th
e
s
e
 3
4
 w
e
re
 G
re
e
n
, 
5
 A
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 2
 R
e
d
.

R
e
p
o
rt
in

g
 

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

%
 R

e
d
, 
A
m

b
e
r 
G

re
e
n

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

T
h
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 S
c
o
re
c
a
rd
 c
o
n
fi
rm
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
. 
 

S
o
m
e
 i
te
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 f
la
g
g
e
d
 a
s
 a
m
b
e
r 
b
u
t 
th
is
 i
s
 m
o
re
 p
re
c
a
u
ti
o
n
a
ry
 d
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
s
ta
b
ili
ty
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

re
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
/m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
o
 n
o
t 
fo
re
s
e
e
 a
n
y
 l
a
s
ti
n
g
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
.

F
o
r 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 u
p
d
a
te
s
 o
n
 a
ll 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 Q
2
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 S
c
o
re
c
a
rd
.

A
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 1
8
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 d
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 t
im
e
 a
re
 G
re
e
n

7
 o
f 
th
e
 8
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
re
 G
re
e
n
 w
it
h
 1
 A
m
b
e
r

O
f 
th
e
 1
4
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 d
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 t
im
e
, 
1
1
 a
re
 G
re
e
n
, 
2
 A
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 1
 R
e
d

O
f 
3
3
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
, 
2
6
 w
e
re
 G
re
e
n
, 
4
 A
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 3
 R
e
d
.

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

3
0
/0
9
/2
0
1
1

G
G

G
G

G
A

R
R

G
G

D
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 B
ri
g
h
te
r 
F
u
tu
re
s
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

P
ro
m
o
te
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
in
w
a
rd
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 w
a
rd
s
. 
A
ll 
lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
ti
e
rs
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 h
e
ld

fo
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 u
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
u
tu
re
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
O
C
C
's
 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 H
u
b
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 a
t 

W
o
o
d
g
re
e
n
. 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
m
e
 l
e
a
d
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a
ff
e
c
t 
h
o
u
s
e
 b
u
ild

in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

m
a
jo
r 
s
it
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 B
a
n
k
s
id
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
B
a
n
b
u
ry
 h
a
s
 y
e
t 
to
 s
ta
rt
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
a
te
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
t 
K
in
g
s
m
e
re
 (
S
W
 

B
ic
e
s
te
r)
 i
s
 p
re
s
e
n
tl
y
 s
lo
w
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
. 
 I
t 
is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
5
0
0
 d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
 f
o
r 
1
1
/1
2
 w

ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

m
e
t.
  
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
re
 p
re
s
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 2
0
1
1
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
re
c
e
n
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r.

B
a
la
n
c
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 g
ro
w
th

D
e
liv
e
r 
5
0
0
 n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 m

a
jo
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
.

(N
I1
5
4
 b
e
lo
w
 r
e
fe
rs
)

In
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 6
 C

h
e
rw

e
ll 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 O

B
E
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
. 
 7
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 w

e
re
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 C
h
e
rw

e
ll 
In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 C
D
C
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

C
h
e
rw

e
ll 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 A
w
a
rd
s
, 
le
d
 b
y
 C

D
C
 w

it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 s
p
o
n
s
o
rs
h
ip
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r,
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
-1
2
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t's
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

A
w
a
rd
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 b
e
in
g
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
.

A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 i
n
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 (
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
) 
S
u
m
m
it
 a
re
 a
g
a
in
 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
, 
p
lu
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

g
ro
u
p
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 B
ic
e
s
te
r,
 K
id
lin
g
to
n
 a
n
d
 r
u
ra
l 
a
re
a
s
. 
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n

2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

C
h
e
rw
e
ll
: 
A
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
o
f 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le
 d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 t
im

e
s

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 b
o
th
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 
L
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 C
lim

a
te
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
. 

5
1
5
 j
o
b
 s
e
e
k
e
rs
 h
e
lp
e
d
 t
o
 d
a
te
 i
n
 1
1
-1
2

1
0
9
 j
o
b
 s
e
e
k
e
rs
 h
e
lp
e
d
 a
t 
5
 J
o
b
 C

lu
b
s
 h
e
ld
 d
u
ri
n
g
 S
e
p
t 
1
1
 (
2
x
B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 3
x
B
ic
e
s
te
r)
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 2
 f
o
c
u
s
in
g
 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 1
 f
o
c
u
s
in
g
 u
p
o
n
 r
e
ta
il 
a
s
 a
 c
a
re
e
r.

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
to
 w
o
rk
 b
y
 h
e
lp
in
g
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
1
0
0
0
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 

a
t 
o
u
r 
B
ic
e
s
te
r 
a
n
d
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 J
o
b
s
 c
lu
b
s

Page 33



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n

2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

G
A

G
G

A
G

G
G

G
G

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

N
I 
1
5
6
 N

u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 

te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

3
6

3
3

A
3
2

3
3

G

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h
a
rd
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
o
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
, 
ta
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
. 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
: 
re
p
e
a
t 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
s

0
2

G
0

3
G

T
h
e
 h
a
rd
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
s
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s

N
I1
8
1
 T
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 p
ro
c
e
s
s

H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t/
C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x

B
e
n
e
fi
t 
n
e
w
 c
la
im

s
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 e
v
e
n
ts

1
0
.9
6

1
1

G
8
.4
8

1
1

G

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o
f 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 i
n
 g
o
o
d
 t
im

e
. 
 T
h
e
 

n
e
w
 A
T
L
A
S
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 i
s
 b
o
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

N
I1
5
4
 N

e
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
h
o
m
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d

3
2
.0
0

1
2
5
.0
0

R
1
1
0
.0
0

1
2
5
.0
0

R

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a
ff
e
c
t 
h
o
u
s
e
 b
u
ild

in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
m
a
jo
r 
s
it
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 B
a
n
k
s
id
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
B
a
n
b
u
ry
 

h
a
s
 y
e
t 
to
 s
ta
rt
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
a
te
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
t 
K
in
g
s
m
e
re
 (
S
W
 B
ic
e
s
te
r)
 i
s
 p
re
s
e
n
tl
y
 s
lo
w
e
r 

th
a
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
. 
 I
t 
is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
5
0
0
 d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
 f
o
r 
1
1
/1
2
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

m
e
t.
  
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
re
 p
re
s
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 2
0
1
1
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
re
c
e
n
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r.

P
ro
te
c
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
ilt
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 C
o
re
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
1
1

 S
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
P
h
a
s
e
 1
 o
f 
E
c
o
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
(N

W
) 
E
x
e
m
p
la
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
  

 T
h
e
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 f
o
u
r 
m
o
re
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
.

P
re
p
a
re
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 p
o
lic
y
 f
o
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 
£
1
m
ill
io
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

W
o
rk
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 v
ib
ra
n
c
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
to
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 u
rb
a
n
 a
re
a
s

P
re
p
a
re
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 r
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 B
o
lt
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a
re
a
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk

A
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
o
f 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 :
  
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

T
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 S
P
D
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 p
re
p
a
re
d
, 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
fo
r 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 l
a
te
r 
in
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th
.

W
o
rk
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
P
D
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
, 
a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 a
re
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 l
a
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls

M
a
k
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
a
n
a
l 
S
id
e
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
 

B
a
n
b
u
ry

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 c
le
a
r 
lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 l
o
c
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 

Page 34



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n

2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

G
G

W
o
rk
 w

it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
4
0
 a
c
ti
v
e
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

A
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
C
D
C
 b
y
 A
g
e
 U
K
 O

x
o
n
. 
 R
e
g
u
la
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n

Page 35



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

3
0
/0
9
/2
0
1
1

G
A

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w

a
s
te
 p
e
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

5
9
2
7
.0
0

5
9
0
0
.0
0

A
1
1
,9
2
7
.0
0

1
1
,8
0
0
.0
0

A

B
ro
a
d
ly
 s
im

ila
r 
to
n
n
a
g
e
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
- 
a
 p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 u
p
 t
o
 

s
e
v
e
ra
l 
h
u
n
d
re
d
 3
6
0
 b
in
s
 f
ro
m
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
q
u
a
lif
y
 f
o
r 

h
a
v
in
g
 a
 l
a
rg
e
r 
b
in
 w
ill
 h
e
lp
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r.
  

W
o
rk
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 o
u
r 
s
tr
e
e
ts
, 
to
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 a
re
 c
le
a
n
, 
w
e
ll
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe

W
o
rk
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 o
u
r 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 l
im
it
 o
u
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
n
a
tu
ra
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
th
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
to
 d
o
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
E
c
o
-B
ic
e
s
te
r,
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
g
re
e
n
 o
r 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 l
iv
in
g

A
ll
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 T
h
e
m
e
 a
re
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
le
d
g
e
s

L
a
n
d
fi
ll 
to
n
n
a
g
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
- 
d
is
a
p
p
o
in
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
la
n
d
fi
ll 
to
n
n
a
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
fa
lle

n
 s
o
 f
a
r 

th
is
 y
e
a
r 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 

A
w
a
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 b
u
t 
th
e
 o
th
e
r 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
fr
o
m
 c
a
rd
s
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 b
u
lk
y
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
  
is
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 f
ro
m
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 "
s
e
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
" 
o
n
 2
7
 J
u
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
. 
 

D
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
p
d
a
te
d
. 
 T
h
e
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r 
is
 b
e
in
g
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D

e
liv
e
ry
 B
o
a
rd

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n

2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

A
 C
le
a
n
e
r,
 G
re
e
n
e
r 
C
h
e
rw
e
ll

P
ro
v
id
e
 e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 
w
a
s
te
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 s
e
n
t 
to
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

M
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 o
u
r 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 

w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

W
o
rk
 w

it
h
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
ie
s
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
n
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
4
0
0
 h
o
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

G
ra
d
u
a
l 
g
ro
w
th
 o
f 
n
e
w
 s
it
e
s
 -
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
m
o
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 l
a
te
r 
in
 t
h
e
 a
u
tu
m
n

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 b
lit
z
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 -
 n
e
x
t 
e
v
e
n
t 
in
 L
a
n
g
fo
rd
 V
ill
a
g
e
 i
n
 m

id
 O

c
to
b
e
r 

A
 C
le
a
n
e
r,
 G
re
e
n
e
r 
C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 :
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

W
o
rk
 i
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
2
0
1
1
.

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E
c
o
-

B
ic
e
s
te
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
b
ri
n
g
 b
a
n
k
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
it
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

W
o
rk
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

lit
te
r 
b
lit
z
e
s
 

Page 36



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

3
0
/0
9
/2
0
1
1

P
ro
v
id
e
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 a
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
ll
y
 s
o
u
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
, 
m
in
im
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
s
m
a
ll
e
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 o
n
 f
ro
n
tl
in
e
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

G
G

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 c
o
s
ts

 

G
G

G
G

D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 t
ru
s
te
d
 t
o
 a
c
t 
p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
 b
y
 b
e
in
g
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
o
u
r 
c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

G
G

W
o
rk
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 w
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
 g
o
o
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

G
G

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
 a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
fo
rm

a
ts
. 
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
te
ri
a
l 
c
o
n
fi
rm

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 P
la
in
 E
n
g
lis
h
 

C
ry
s
ta
l 
M
a
rk
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
s
 i
n
to
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
fa
c
to
rs
, 
e
th
n
ic
it
y
, 
g
e
n
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 g
e
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
.

M
a
in
ta
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
g
t 
te
a
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 i
s
 

e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 s
h
a
re
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
N
C

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n

2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
2
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

A
n
 A
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
, 
V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 m

a
tc
h
e
d
 t
o
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 a
b
le
 

to
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
e
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts
 b
y
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
 s
in
g
le
 s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
n
io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 w

it
h
 S
o
u
th
 N

o
rt
h
a
m
p
to
n
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

E
x
p
lo
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c
o
s
ts
 b
y
 w

o
rk
in
g
 w

it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 S
o
u
th
 

N
o
rt
h
a
m
p
to
n
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
(S

N
C
),
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

o
d
e
ls
 o
r 

s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 

a
c
ti
v
e
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 i
n
 a
 c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
n
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 

g
o
o
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

B
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
re
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y

S
h
a
re
d
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 i
s
 n
o
w
 i
n
 p
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
g
re
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
l 
T
a
rg
e
t 
: 
D
a
ta
 n
o
t 
d
u
e
 u
n
ti
l 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
T
a
rg
e
t 
: 
D
a
ta
 n
o
t 
d
u
e
 u
n
ti
l 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
.

1
0
.0
0

6
0
.0
0

R
1
8
.1
8

6
0
.0
0

R

T
a
rg
e
t 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 w

it
h
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
lo
w
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
m
a
jo
r 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
k
e
y
, 
c
o
m
p
le
x
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
y
 o
v
e
r-
ru
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
im

e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

in
te
re
s
t 
o
f 
s
o
u
n
d
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
.

8
4
.2
1

6
5
.0
0

G
8
0
.1
6

6
5
.0
0

G
E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d

8
7
.0
2

8
0
.0
0

G
8
8
.5
9

8
0
.0
0

G
E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d

3
8
.4
6

3
0
.0
0

R
3
3
.3
3

3
0
.0
0

R
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 i
s
 v
o
la
ti
le
 a
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 l
o
w
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
p
p
e
a
l 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 a
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t.
  
N
o
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
p
o
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t.
  
W
ill
 b
e
 c
a
re
fu
lly
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
.

G
G

3
9
%
 o
f 
n
e
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re
 o
n
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 l
o
w
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
lly
 h
ig
h
 Q

1
 r
e
tu
rn
 o
f 
7
8
%
 b
u
t 
h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
3
0
%
. 
 P
la
n
n
e
d
 

g
re
e
n
fi
e
ld
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
C
a
s
s
in
g
to
n
 R

o
a
d
, 
Y
a
rn
to
n
 h
a
s
 l
o
w
e
re
d
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r'
s
 r
e
tu
rn
. 

A
A

D
u
ri
n
g
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 n
o
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
jo
b
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
tt
ri
b
u
te
d
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 h
e
lp
 

fr
o
m
 C

D
C
. 
  
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
h
o
w
e
d
 1
1
 j
o
b
 l
o
s
s
e
s
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
b
a
la
n
c
e
 l
a
te
r 
in
 

2
0
1
1
-1
2
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
.

J
o
b
 S
e
e
k
e
rs
 A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 c
la
im

a
n
ts
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 a
t 
2
.0
%
 (
A
u
g
 1
1
) 
w
h
ils
t 
th
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
a
te
 

re
m
a
in
s
 s
tr
o
n
g
 a
t 
8
2
.8
%
. 
 Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 n
o
t 
in
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 (
N
E
E
T
) 

re
m
a
in
 a
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 b
u
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
ro
u
te
s
 t
o
 

w
o
rk
.

A
 Y
o
u
n
g
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
a
t 
T
u
d
o
r 
H
a
ll 
e
n
a
b
le
d
 b
y
 C

D
C
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 2
3
 S
e
p
t 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 8
5
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 1
2
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
a
d
v
is
o
rs
 f
ro
m
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
a
ll 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 f
e
lt
 t
h
is
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l,
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 s
k
ill
s
 a
c
q
u
ir
e
d
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

s
e
e
n
 i
n
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
y
e
a
rs
 t
im

e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 n
e
w
 e
n
tr
e
p
re
n
e
u
rs
.

A
G

T
h
e
 E
n
e
rg
y
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 n
o
te
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 m

id
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
w
o
 m

o
re
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 n
o
te
s
, 
L
im

e
, 
S
h
o
p
 F
ro
n
ts
, 
a
re
 u
n
d
e
r 
w
a
y

N
I 
1
5
9
 S
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
re
a
d
y
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
it
e
s

N
I 
1
7
0
 P
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
o
r

d
e
re
lic
t 
fo
r 
m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 5
 y
e
a
rs

N
I 
1
5
7
a
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
m
a
jo
r 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in
 1
3
 w
e
e
k
s

N
I 
1
5
7
b
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
m
in
o
r 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in
 8
 w
e
e
k
s

N
I 
1
5
7
c
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 8
 w

e
e
k
s

%
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
 a
llo
w
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
re
fu
s
a
l 
d
e
c
is
io
n

%
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 o
n
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 l
a
n
d

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
0
 n
e
w
 j
o
b
s

P
re
p
a
re
 d
e
s
ig
n
, 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

p
ro
te
c
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 b
u
ilt
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 2

0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

A
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y

Page 39



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 2

0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

1
.7
0

0
.0
0

R
-4
.5
4

0
.0
0

G

O
v
e
ra
ll 
ju
s
t 
o
v
e
r 
5
.5
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
tw

o
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 '
1
0
/1
1
. 
9
.5
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
2
.5
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 f
le
e
t.
 B
u
ild

in
g
s
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 m

ile
a
g
e
 

h
a
v
e
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
s
h
o
w
n
 a
 r
is
e
 -
 t
h
e
 r
is
e
 o
n
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk
 a
t 
T
h
o
rp
e
 

L
a
n
e
 d
e
p
o
t 
&
 B
o
d
ic
o
te
 H

o
u
s
e

 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
T
a
rg
e
t 
: 
D
a
ta
 n
o
t 
d
u
e
 u
n
ti
l 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
.

G
G

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ro
a
d
s
h
o
w
s
 f
o
r 
re
c
y
c
lin

g
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 e
n
e
rg
y
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 

to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c
a
rb
o
n
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s

  

G
A

F
ly
 t
ip
s
 b
ro
a
d
ly
 o
n
 l
in
e
 w

it
h
 '
1
0
/1
1
 -
 s
ti
ll 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 a
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
 5
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r

1
0
4
.0
0

1
0
4
.0
0

G
1
5
3
.0
0

1
6
6
.0
0

A

S
ti
ll 
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 -
 y
e
a
r 
to
 d
a
te
 t
o
ta
l 
is
 2
9
9
 (
m
id
 O

c
t)
. 
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r
e
tu
rn
 f
ig
u
re
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 2
8
 d
a
y
s
 e
it
h
e
r 
s
id
e
 o
f 
d
u
e
 

d
a
te
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
e
rm

it
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 F
S
A
 C

o
d
e
 o
f 
C
o
m
p
lia

n
c
e
.

G
9
0
%

9
1
%

G
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
(w

it
h
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
to
le
ra
n
c
e
) 
.

G
9
5
%

9
4
%

G
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
(w

it
h
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
to
le
ra
n
c
e
) 
.

G
G

R
e
g
u
la
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 U

rb
a
n
 T
o
w
n
 C

o
u
n
c
il'
s
 t
o
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
w
id
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 w

it
h
 a
 

2
0
1
2
 t
h
e
m
e
. 
 L
e
g
a
c
y
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 w

e
b
 s
it
e
 c
re
a
te
d
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 o
n
e
 

p
la
c
e
. 
 L
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
p
e
n
 d
a
y
s
 h
e
ld
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 f
e
a
tu
re
d
 o
ly
m
p
ic
 s
p
o
rt
s
. 

F
ir
s
t 
C
h
e
rw

e
ll 
S
p
o
rt
s
 A
w
a
rd
s
 e
v
e
n
t 
h
e
ld
 a
t 
S
L
C
, 
v
e
ry
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l.

0
.1
2

1
.1
4

G
0
.3
3

1
.1
4

G
T
re
n
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
s
 t
h
is
 f
ig
u
re
 w

ill
 r
e
m
a
in
 w

e
ll 
b
e
lo
w
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 O

p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 J
u
g
g
e
rn
a
u
ts
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l.

G
G

R
e
c
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
, 

fa
c
ili
ta
ti
n
g
 s
p
o
rt
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 (
n
e
tb
a
ll,
 b
a
d
m
in
to
n
, 
g
o
lf
, 
h
o
c
k
e
y
, 
c
ri
c
k
e
t 
a
n
d
 r
u
g
b
y
) 

a
n
d
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 F
o
o
tb
a
ll 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
.

N
I 
0
0
8
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 1
%

N
I 
1
9
4
iii
 E
m
is
s
io
n
s
 o
f 
P
M
1
0

N
I 
1
9
4
iv
 %

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 P
M
1
0
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fl
y
 t
ip
s
 b
y
 5
%

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ri
s
k
 b
a
s
e
d
 f
o
o
d
 p
re
m
is
e
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d

C
O
2
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 (
N
I 
1
8
5
) 

A
 C

le
a
n

e
r 

G
re

e
n

e
r 

C
h

e
rw

e
ll

A
 S

a
fe

, 
H

e
a
lt

h
y
 a

n
d

 T
h

ri
v
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

N
I 
1
8
8
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 a
d
a
p
t 
to
 c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 (
s
c
o
re
)

In
fo
rm

 a
ll 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 h
o
w
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c
a
rb
o
n
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s

N
I 
1
9
4
i 
E
m
is
s
io
n
s
 o
f 
N
O
x

N
I 
1
9
4
ii 
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
N
o
x
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
T
a
rg
e
ts
: 
D
a
ta
 n
o
t 
d
u
e
 u
n
ti
l 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
.

%
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 w

h
e
n
 a
s
k
e
d
 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe
 b
e
in
g
 h
o
m
e
 a
lo
n
e
 a
ft
e
r 
d
a
rk

%
 R

e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w

h
e
n
 a
s
k
e
d
 s
a
y
 t
h
e
y
 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe
 i
n
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
O
ly
m
p
ic
 L
e
g
a
c
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 e
v
e
n
ts
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 

b
e
y
o
n
d

V
io
le
n
c
e
 A
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 P
e
rs
o
n
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n

Page 40



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 2

0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

2
9
.9
0

3
0
.0
0

A
5
8
.1
7

5
8
.0
0

G
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
lig

h
tl
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n

3
2
.4
2

3
0
.0
0

G
5
9
.6
8

5
8
.0
0

G
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
w
e
ll 
a
b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
h
a
s
 d
ro
p
p
e
d
 s
lig

h
tl
y
 f
ro
m
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 m

o
n
th
s
. 
S
ti
ll 
a
n
 e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
..
..
..

1
6
.4
2

1
8
.0
0

G
1
8
.9
9

1
7
.0
0

R

P
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
im

e
s
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 c
la
im

s
 a
re
 b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 m

o
n
th
 b
u
t 
b
a
re
ly
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 A
T
L
A
S
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o
f 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d

9
.6
2

1
3
.0
0

G
7
.0
5

1
3
.0
0

G
P
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o
f 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 A
T
L
A
S
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 g
o
o
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a

8
0
.1
0

7
0
.0
0

G
6
9
.0
0

7
8
.0
0

R
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s
lig

h
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
  
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 O

c
to
b
e
r.
  
 

1
3
.1
0

1
1
.0
0

G
2
2
..
0
2

2
0
.0
0

G
A
b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
n
 B
V
P
 0
7
9
b
ii 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
rr
e
a
rs
. 
P
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 w

e
ll.

1
.2
8

1
.5
0

G
2
.0
5

3
.0
0

G
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 O

c
to
b
e
r.
  

9
8
.3
2

9
8
.3
0

G
9
8
.9
7

9
8
.3
0

G
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t

 
C
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
s
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
.

9
.2
0

2
0
.3
0

G
1
5
.6
0

2
0
.6
4

G

C
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 o
v
e
r 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 T
a
rg
e
t 
h
a
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

to
 1
0
%
 o
r 
le
s
s
 a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 f
ro
m
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1

N
e
w
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
; 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
fa
r 
in
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
a
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
.

G
G

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
=
 1
2
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
ll 
s
ta
g
e
 1
.

J
u
ly
 -
 S
e
p
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
 6
1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 5
9
 s
ta
g
e
 1
, 
2
 s
ta
g
e
 2

1
2
 S
ta
g
e
 1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
:-

3
 A
m
e
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
3
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
, 
1
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
1
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
&
 M

a
jo
r 
C
o
n
tr
o
ls
, 
1
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 3
 i
n
 u
rb
a
n
 &
 R

u
ra
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

%
 I
n
v
o
ic
e
s
 p
a
id
 w

it
h
in
 3
0
 d
a
y
s

D
e
liv
e
r 
a
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 b
e
lo
w
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n

%
 T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 c
a
lls
 a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r

9
0
%
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 a
re
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 S
ta
g
e
 O

n
e

B
V
0
7
9
b
i.
0
5
 %

 H
B
 R
e
c
o
v
e
re
d
: 
O
v
e
rp
a
y
m
e
n
t 
 

B
V
0
7
9
b
ii.
0
5
 %

 H
B
 R
e
c
o
v
e
re
d
: 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
  

B
V
0
7
9
b
iii
.0
5
 %

 H
B
 O

'P
a
y
: 
W
ri
tt
e
n
 O

ff
  

B
V
0
0
9
 %

 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 

B
V
0
1
0
 %

 N
N
D
R
 c
o
lle

c
te
d
 

B
V
0
7
8
a
 A
v
e
ra
g
e
 t
im

e
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 H

B
/C
T
B

c
la
im

s
 

B
V
0
7
8
b
 A
v
e
ra
g
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 

A
n

 A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

Page 41



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

A
c
tu
a
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

T
a
rg
e
t

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 2

0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

G
G

2
 s
ta
g
e
 2
 c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
b
o
th
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
.

N
o
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w

e
re
 e
s
c
a
la
te
d
 t
o
 S
ta
g
e
 2

G
G

N
o
 s
ta
g
e
 3
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

N
o
 s
ta
g
e
 3
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
J
u
ly
 -
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

2
 O

m
b
u
d
s
m
a
n
 c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r.

G
G

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d

G
G

W
id
e
 r
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
ll 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h

G
G

T
a
s
k
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 Q

1

P
re
v
e
n
ta
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
in
d
ic
a
to
r:
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 f
o
o
tf
a
ll 
in
 o
n
e
 

s
to
p
 s
h
o
p
s
 b
y
 5
0
%

S
ta
rt
s
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1

1
.0
7

2
.3
3

G
1
.5
6

2
.5
3

G
T
a
rg
e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 T
a
rg
e
t 
re
v
is
e
d
 f
ro
m
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
to
 1
 m

in
u
te

G
G

In
c
o
m
e
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w

it
h
 b
u
d
g
e
t

1
0
0
.0
0

0
.0
0

G
1
0
0
.0
0

1
2
.5
0

G
T
h
re
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a
re
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
u
d
it
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
rt
h
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r.

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 o
f 
a
n
s
w
e
r 
(t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
s
)

C
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e

%
 o
f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a
u
d
it
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le

9
5
%
 o
f 
a
ll 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 e
s
c
a
la
te
d
 t
o
 S
ta
g
e
 T
w
o
 a
re
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 e
s
c
a
la
te
d
 f
ro
m
 S
ta
g
e
 T
h
re
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 O

m
b
u
d
s
m
a
n

P
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
1

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
C
h
e
rw

e
ll 
L
in
k

A
n

 A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
d

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
b
le
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
m
e
a
s
u
re

Page 42



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4

Q
u
a
rt
e
r

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

3
0
/0
9
/2
0
1
1

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

E
x
p
lo
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

G
G

T
h
e
 n
e
w
 J
o
in
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 (
J
M
T
) 
is
 n
o
w
 i
n
 p
o
s
t.
  
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y

2
 y
e
a
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 

G
G

P
ro
je
c
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
.

V
F
M
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

G
G

R
e
v
ie
w
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
£
1
m
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
le
d
g
e

N
e
w
 H

o
m
e
s
 B
o
n
u
s
 u
s
e
/ 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

G
G

P
ro
je
c
t 
u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
J
o
in
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
.

L
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

G
G

T
h
e
 C
h
e
rw

e
ll 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 c
lim

a
te
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 g
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
lla
te
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 C
h
e
rw

e
ll 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
T
h
e
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 o
n
 e
x
a
m
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

p
ro
d
u
c
ts
. 
 I
t 
is
 a
ls
o
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 c
a
n
 s
ta
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
o
f 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
s
. 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 
fe
e
 /
 c
h
a
rg
e
 s
e
tt
in
g
 a
n
d
 V
F
M

A
A

A
w
a
it
in
g
 G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
. 

P
ro
je
c
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 n
e
w
 j
o
in
t 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 M

u
s
e
u
m
 T
ru
s
t 
S
ta
tu
s

G
G

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
 O

c
to
b
e
r.
  
T
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
lig
h
t 
d
e
la
y
s
 b
u
t 
th
is
 w
o
n
't
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
je
c
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

A
A

T
h
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
h
a
d
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
fo
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

te
a
m
 a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
ts
.

D
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 B
ill

 
G

W
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 i
n
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
C
D
C
 w
o
rk
 (
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 p
la
n
n
in
g
).

D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 /
 B
ri
g
h
te
r 
F
u
tu
re
s
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 (
lo
c
a
l 
c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
)

G
A

A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 T
h
e
m
e
 L
e
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l.

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

A
G

P
ro
je
c
t 
te
a
m
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 a
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 d
a
te
 e
n
d
 o
f 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 S
o
m
e
 d
e
la
y
 w
it
h
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n

G
A

P
la
n
 o
n
 h
o
ld
 p
e
n
d
in
g
 J
M
T
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
m
e
 w

ill
 b
e
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 i
n
 p
ri
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd
. 

M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

A
A

P
ro
je
c
t 
o
n
 h
o
ld
 p
e
n
d
in
g
 J
o
in
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 r
e
v
ie
w

R
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
n
g
in
g
 N
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
a
n
 A
g
e
in
g
 

P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

G
G

T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
E
x
tr
a
 C
a
re
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 i
n
 C
h
e
rw

e
ll 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 a
llo

c
a
te
d
. 
T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
1
8
th
 w
ill
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 
la
u
n
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 4
0
 

a
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
t 
O
rc
h
a
rd
 F
ie
ld
s
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
. 
H
R
H
 P
ri
n
c
e
s
s
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ri
a
 w

ill
 b
e
 i
n
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 V
a
lu
e
 F
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

3
0
/0
9
/2
0
1
1

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 C

h
e
rw

e
ll 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 o
u
r 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
re
a
t 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 

fa
ir
ly
 r
e
g
a
rd
le
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 o
r 
w
a
y
 o
f 
lif
e

G
G

3
 l
a
rg
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r.
  
C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
 G

ri
m
s
b
u
ry
, 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 

P
a
n
e
l 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 a
llo
w
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 t
ry
 

o
u
t 
m
a
c
h
in
e
s
 e
tc
 a
n
d
 a
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l/
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 k
n
o
w
in
g
 y
o
u
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
v
e
n
t 
in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 d
e
a
f 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 C
D
C
 a
n
d
 L
e
x
ic
o
n
.

T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
ld
e
r 
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C

h
e
rw

e
ll 

d
is
tr
ic
t

G
G

O
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
s
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
s
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
.

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
o
th
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

to
 a
ll 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 G

ro
u
p
s
 a
t 
a
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd

G
G

A
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 h
e
a
d
e
r 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 g
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
.

T
o
 b
re
a
k
 t
h
e
 c
y
c
le
 o
f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
(B

ri
g
h
te
r 
F
u
tu
re
s
 

in
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
)

G
A

O
n
g
o
in
g
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 w
a
rd
s
. 
A
ll 
lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
ti
e
rs
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 u
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
u
tu
re
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 H
u
b
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 

a
t 
W
o
o
d
g
re
e
n
. 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
m
e
 l
e
a
d
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l 
re
q
u
ir
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

P
ro
m
o
te
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 g
ro
u
p
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o
f 
s
p
o
rt
, 
le
is
u
re
, 
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t

G
G

T
h
e
 R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 &
 S
p
o
rt
 a
c
ti
v
a
to
rs
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 f
re
e
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 s
p
o
rt
s
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 a
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 8
 y
e
a
rs
+
 i
n
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
rk
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

lo
c
a
lly
. 
 T
h
e
 A
c
ti
v
a
to
rs
 a
re
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
t 
a
re
a
s
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 

n
e
w
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 B
a
rn
a
d
o
s
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w

o
rk
 w

it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t

G
G

O
n
 g
o
in
g
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 C

h
e
rw

e
ll 
y
o
u
th
 f
o
ru
m
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
w
it
h
 a
 n
e
w
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 

e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 h
u
b
s
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 /
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
&
 K
id
lin
g
to
n
. 

A
 n
e
w
 y
o
u
th
 f
o
ru
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 c
y
c
le
 w
a
rd
s
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
h
o
s
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
 

H
ill
 y
o
u
th
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
v
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 g
re
a
t 
m
e
th
o
d
 t
o
 l
ia
is
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 s
e
t 
u
p
 n
e
w
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 

a
re
a
s
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
. 

Y
o
u
th
 m

ic
ro
 s
it
e
 h
a
s
 o
ff
ic
ia
lly
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
ts
 o
n
lin
e
 f
o
ru
m
 a
llo
w
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
re
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 /
 v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
is
s
u
e
s
 f
a
c
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
2
4
/7
. 
 N
e
w
 t
o
p
ic
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
ru
m
 m

o
n
th
ly
 i
n
 

th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 v
o
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

B
u

il
d

in
g

 S
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

h
e
s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

1
/2

0
1

2
 

F
a
ir

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

T
a
c
k
li
n

g
 I
n

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 a
n

d
 D

e
p

ri
v
a
ti

o
n

Page 45



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

3
0
/0
9
/2
0
1
1

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

1
/2

0
1

2
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 C

h
e
rw

e
ll’
s
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 w

e
 f
u
lf
il 
a
ll 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
n
e
e
d
s
 w

it
h
in
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

G
G

R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 a
rm

e
d
 f
o
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
s
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
. 
 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 b
u
ild
in
g
 w
it
h
 O

ff
ic
e
rs
 a
t 

B
u
lli
n
g
d
o
n
 P
ri
s
o
n
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 b
a
c
k
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

R
a
is
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 w

it
h
in
 o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

G
G

L
e
x
ic
o
n
 -
 D
e
a
f 
A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r.

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
is
e
 a
ll 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w

it
h
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk

G
G

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 n
e
w
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
n
a
ly
s
is
 (
fo
rm

a
lly
 k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t)
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 

c
o
rr
e
c
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
.

A
ll 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
a
n
d
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 v
ia
 i
n
tr
a
n
e
t 
o
r 
w
e
b
s
it
e
. 
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

G
G

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
e
lf
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 d
u
ri
n
g
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
1
. 
 T
h
is
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 w
h
e
re
b
y
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
g
ra
tu
la
te
d
 C
D
C
's
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

d
u
ri
n
g
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
3
.

E
n
s
u
re
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
n
d
 e
m
b
e
d
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
ir
 

w
o
rk

G
G

S
ta
ff
 F
a
ir
 a
n
d
 A
w
a
re
 t
ra
in
in
g
 m

o
d
u
le
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
ra
in
in
g
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
. 
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 w
o
rk
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
e
d
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 f
le
x
ib
le
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t
o
o
 l
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 a
d
a
p
t 
to
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 f
ro
m
 d
e
p
o
t 
s
ta
ff
.

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 E
-l
e
a
rn
in
g
 m

o
d
u
le
 h
a
s
 g
o
n
e
 l
iv
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
n
e
w
 s
ta
rt
e
rs
.

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m

o
d
u
le
 t
o
 b
e
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 i
n
 Q

3
 a
n
d
 g
o
 l
iv
e
 Q

4
.

A
ll 
E
IA
's
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 D

iv
e
rs
it
y
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p

G
G

G
ro
u
p
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 F
a
ir
 &
 A
w
a
re
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
s
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 &
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
w
it
h
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
in
g
 

fl
e
x
ib
le
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
w
h
o
le
 t
e
a
m
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 D
e
p
o
t 
s
ta
ff
 w
h
e
re
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

tr
a
in
in
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
 i
ts
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
ty
le
. 

D
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti

n
g

 O
u

r 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 
to

 E
q

u
a
li
ty

Page 46



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

3
0
/0
9
/2
0
1
1

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

G
G

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 B
re
a
k
fa
s
t 
e
v
e
n
t 
h
e
ld
 o
n
 8
 J
u
ly
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
n
g
 o
v
e
r 
1
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 4
7
 p
le
d
g
e
s
 b
y
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 a
 

v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
w
a
y
s
 (
a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
s
, 
g
ro
u
p
 v
is
it
s
, 
ta
s
te
r 
v
is
it
s
, 
w
o
rk
 t
ri
a
ls
, 
e
tc
).
  
L
e
d
 b
y
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 h
o
s
te
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 O
x
fo
rd
 &
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
V
a
lle
y
 C
o
lle
g
e
 (
fe
a
tu
ri
n
g
 c
a
te
ri
n
g
 b
y
 h
o
s
p
it
a
lit
y
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
),
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 T
o
n
y
 B
a
ld
ry
 M
P
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C
D
C
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 B
re
a
k
fa
s
t 
C
lu
b
 n
e
tw
o
rk
. 
 I
t 
w
a
s
 h
ig
h
ly
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
n
d
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
lle
g
e
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
. 
 T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 
 

G
G

J
o
b
 C
lu
b
 '
s
p
e
c
ia
ls
' h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
e
ld
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 b
o
th
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
, 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
th
is
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
s
ta
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
c
a
d
e
m
ic
 y
e
a
r 
b
y
 a
im
in
g
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 N
E
E
T
 (
n
o
t 
in
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
).
  
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
a
t 
th
is
 t
im
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 S
in
c
e
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
1
s
t,
 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 N
E
E
T
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
e
c
a
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 H
u
b
s
 b
e
in
g
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 l
o
c
a
lly
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 

B
ic
e
s
te
r.

G
G

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 f
o
o
d
 b
a
n
k
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 i
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r.
  
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
u
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
e
o
p
le
's
 

C
h
u
rc
h
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
s
e
ll 
T
ru
s
t 
C
h
a
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il.
 I
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 a
im
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 f
e
e
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
s
e
 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 b
u
t 
w
h
o
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 o
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
, 
fo
r 
th
re
e
 d
a
y
s
; 
th
e
 t
im
e
 i
t 
ta
k
e
s
 f
o
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 e
ff
e
c
t.
  

A
A

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
B
a
n
b
u
ry
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 %

5
 A
*-
C
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
1
 f
ro
m
 6
8
.5
%
 

to
 8
2
.2
%
. 
N
o
rt
h
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 %

 5
 A
*-
C
 g
ra
d
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 E
n
g
lis
h
 a
n
d
 m
a
th
s
 f
ro
m
 2
5
.7
%
 t
o
 5
0
.8
%
. 
 H
ig
h
e
s
t 

a
tt
a
in
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
is
 B
le
s
s
e
d
 G
e
o
rg
e
 N
a
p
ie
r 
w
it
h
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 %

 5
 A
*-
C
 g
ra
d
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 E
n
g
lis
h
 a
n
d
 m
a
th
s
 f
ro
m
 6
2
.3
%
 t
o
 6
7
.8
%
. 

3
 o
f 
th
e
 4
 F
a
m
ily
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 w
e
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
 M
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
-e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 w
it
h
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 s
in
c
e
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
c
q
u
ir
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
ild
's
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 o
n
to
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 o
f 
s
tu
d
y
. 
 D
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
B
ri
tt
a
n
ia
 R
o
a
d
 m
e
a
n
t 
th
a
t 
th
is
 c
o
u
rs
e
 h
a
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
e
rg
e
d
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 C
e
n
tr
e
s

G
G

T
h
e
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
x
tr
a
 c
a
re
 p
la
c
e
s
 a
t 
O
rc
h
a
rd
 m
e
a
d
o
w
s
 i
s
 n
o
w
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
d
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 o
ff
ic
ia
l 
la
u
n
c
h
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
1
8
th
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
H
R
H
 P
ri
n
c
e
s
s
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
. 

T
h
e
 M
ill
e
r 
R
o
a
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 o
n
-t
ra
c
k
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
in
g
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 8
 o
f 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
h
o
rt
 o
f 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 (
p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 

N
E
E
T
 l
o
c
a
l 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
) 
n
o
w
 h
a
v
in
g
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 
a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
s
. 
A
 l
e
tt
in
g
s
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

a
g
re
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
D
a
s
h
w
o
o
d
 R
o
a
d
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
is
 o
n
 s
it
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
in
g
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
M
a
y
 2
0
1
2
. 

T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
s
ta
tu
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 H
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 A
g
e
n
c
y
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
-L
e
d
 a
n
d
 

S
e
lf
-B
u
ild
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 o
f 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 s
it
e
s
 

w
it
h
in
 B
ri
g
h
te
r 
F
u
tu
re
s
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
. 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
&
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt

B
ri
g
h
te
r 
fu
tu
re
s
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 s
k
ill
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t

Im
p
ro
v
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
a
b
ili
ty
, 
fo
c
u
s
in
g
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 o
n
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le

Im
p
ro
v
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 d
e
b
t 
a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
e
x
c
lu
s
io
n

Im
p
ro
v
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 b
e
tt
e
r 
s
k
ill
s
 

in
 n
u
m
e
ra
c
y
 /
 m
a
th
s
 a
n
d
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 f
a
m
ily
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 A
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 &
 A
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t

H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
 

G
o
o
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 m
ix
e
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
, 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

in
c
o
m
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
, 
a
n
d
 s
e
t 
in
 a
 w
e
ll-
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

Page 47



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

3
0
/0
9
/2
0
1
1

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

B
ri
g
h
te
r 
fu
tu
re
s
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

G
P
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

G
G

P
ro
je
c
t 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 s
o
u
th
 A
s
ia
n
 w
o
m
e
n
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
e
rv
ic
a
l 
s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
ts
. 
T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 b
y
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 A
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 u
p
 t
a
k
e
. 
P
ilo
t 
in
 o
n
e
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 G
P
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
n
o
w
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
w
it
h
 a
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 r
o
ll 
o
u
t.

B
Y
H
P
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 d
a
y
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
w
a
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 w
it
h
 f
u
n
d
s
 f
ro
m
 F
o
o
d
 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
(a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 B
F
iB
 f
u
n
d
in
g
)

R
e
m
a
in
in
g
 f
u
n
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 b
e
in
g
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 b
y
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p

R
R

4
 o
u
t 
o
f 
5
 G
P
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
C
a
rd
io
 V
a
s
c
u
la
r 
D
is
e
a
s
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
.

O
f 
1
4
9
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 o
ff
e
re
d
 a
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
 1
0
0
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
, 
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 5
8
 o
ff
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 1
9
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 Q
1
.

5
3
 s
m
o
k
e
rs
 w
e
re
 4
 w
e
e
k
 q
u
it
te
rs
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 w
a
rd
s
. 
 Q
2
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
q
u
it
te
rs
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 d
u
e
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r.
 N
o
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
to
r 

d
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r.
 

P
la
n
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
A
lc
o
h
o
l 
A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 W

e
e
k
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.

G
G

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 r
a
te
s
 h
a
v
e
 d
ro
p
p
e
d
 b
y
 1
6
.4
%
 s
in
c
e
 1
9
9
9
/2
0
0
0
. 
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
a
ta
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 Q
4
. 
 (
a
n
n
u
a
l 
in
 a
rr
e
a
rs
).

A
G

O
v
e
ra
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
re
 w
e
ll 
b
e
lo
w
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 a
re
 w
e
ll 
in
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 s
e
t.
 T
h
e
 o
n
ly
 o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
a
te
g
o
ry
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 s
te
m
s
 f
ro
m
 

a
 l
o
c
a
lis
e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
m
o
re
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 b
e
in
g
 b
ro
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 o
n
 t
h
e
 R
u
s
c
o
te
 a
n
d
 H
a
rd
w
ic
k
 e
s
ta
te
s
. 
A
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 p
o
lic
in
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

th
is
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
is
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
re
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
ri
m
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
. 

A
n
 o
p
e
n
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 a
tt
ra
c
te
d
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
n
e
w
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 h
o
p
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 h
ig
h
lig
h
t 
a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 c
o
u
n
ty
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 "
h
u
b
 m
o
d
e
l"
 

o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 w
h
ic
h
 o
ff
e
rs
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
lo
c
a
lis
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
.

H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W

e
ll
b
e
in
g
  
 

S
a
fe
 &
 S
tr
o
n
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
  
 

B
u
ild
 a
 s
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 m
o
re
 c
o
n
n
e
c
te
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 

w
h
e
re
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 f
e
e
l 
s
o
c
ia
lly
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 h
ig
h
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 
te
e
n
a
g
e
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y

G
o
o
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
m
e
n
it
ie
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
h
o
p
s
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s

Im
p
ro
v
e
 l
if
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
 w
it
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
v
e
ra
ll 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll-
b
e
in
g

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
le
a
r 
in
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 g
a
p
s
 w
it
h
 l
o
w
 l
if
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
 

Page 48



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 7

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
 1

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
1

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
 2

3
0
/0
9
/2
0
1
1

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

  
O

x
fo

rd
s

h
ir

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
G

G
C

o
u

n
ty

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
s

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
ts

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 l

ig
h

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
P

o
lic

y

  
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 T

ru
s

t
G

G
C

llr
 M

c
N

a
m

a
ra

 i
s

 n
o

w
 a

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
 o

n
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 T

ru
s

t.
  

A
re

a
 T

ru
s

t 
B

o
a

rd
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
o

s
tp

o
n

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

c
e

n
t 

m
o

n
th

s
.

  
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll 

B
e

in
g

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 (
H

&
W

B
)

A
G

N
e

w
 O

x
fo

rd
s

h
ir

e
 H

&
W

B
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 u

n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
s

id
e

ra
ti

o
n

. 
S

p
e

c
if

ic
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

ro
le

s
 p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
a

n
 

O
x

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 H
e

a
lt

h
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
.

  
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 W
a

s
te

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

G
G

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

&
 W

a
s

te
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 w
e

ll 
- 

n
o

 m
a

jo
r 

is
s

u
e

s

  
O

x
fo

rd
s

h
ir

e
 S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
G

G

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 i
s

 g
o

in
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
it

io
n

 w
it

h
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

s
 a

c
ro

s
s

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c

to
r.

 N
e

w
 B

o
a

rd
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 e
s

ta
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
u

t 
fi

rs
t 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 n
o

t 
u

n
ti

l 
n

e
x

t 
m

o
n

th
. 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s

 m
e

t 
a

n
d

 b
e

g
in

n
in

g
 t

o
 l

o
o

k
 a

t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 

a
g

e
n

d
a

 w
it

h
 i

s
s

u
e

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 p
o

lic
e

 c
ri

m
e

 c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
rs

 c
o

m
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
o

re
.

  
S

tr
o

n
g

e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 A

lli
a

n
c

e
G

G
T

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 i

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 b
e

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

d
v

ic
e

, 
v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

, 
a

n
d

 c
a

r 
d

ri
v

in
g

 c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s

  
L

o
c

a
l 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s

  
(O

x
fo

rd
 C

it
y

 R
e

g
io

n
)

G
G

C
D

C
 h

a
s

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
d

 i
n

 e
a

rl
y

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
; 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 a
ro

u
n

d
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

G
ro

w
th

 F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 Z
o

n
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v

e
s

. 
 T

h
u

s
 f

a
r 

it
 h

a
s

 

b
e

e
n

 d
if

fi
c

u
lt

 t
o

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 t
h

in
k

in
g

/d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 i

n
 L

E
P

s
. 

 P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 B
ic

e
s

te
r 

E
2

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

s
u

c
c

e
s

s
fu

l.
  

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 e

x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 n
e

w
 

in
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 g

ro
w

th
 f

u
n

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s

  
L

o
c

a
l 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s

 (
S

o
u

th
 M

id
la

n
d

s
)

G
G

C
D

C
 h

a
s

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
d

 i
n

 e
a

rl
y

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
; 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 a
ro

u
n

d
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

G
ro

w
th

 F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 Z
o

n
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v

e
s

. 
 T

h
u

s
 f

a
r 

it
 h

a
s

 

b
e

e
n

 d
if

fi
c

u
lt

 t
o

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 t
h

in
k

in
g

/d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 i

n
 L

E
P

s
. 

 P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 B
ic

e
s

te
r 

E
2

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

s
u

c
c

e
s

s
fu

l.
  

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 e

x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 n
e

w
 

in
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 g

ro
w

th
 f

u
n

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s

  
C

h
e

rw
e

ll 
L

o
c

a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

G
G

B
o

a
rd

 v
a

c
a

n
c

ie
s

 w
e

re
 f

ill
e

d
 l

a
s

t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
llo

c
a

ti
n

g
 L

A
A

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

lo
c

a
l 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s

  
C

h
e

rw
e

ll 
S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
G

G

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 g
o

in
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
it

io
n

 w
it

h
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c

ie
s

 u
n

d
e

r 
p

re
s

s
u

re
 w

it
h

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 s
q

u
e

e
z

e
. 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 C

a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

(P
C

T
) 

h
a

v
e

 

n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 a

b
le

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 T

h
a

m
e

s
 V

a
lle

y
 P

o
lic

e
 h

a
v

e
 a

n
 i

n
te

ri
m

 l
e

a
d

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
a

t 
L

P
A

 l
e

v
e

l 
p

e
n

d
in

g
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

n
e

x
t 

m
o

n
th

.

  
C

h
e

rw
e

ll 
M

4
0

 I
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 (

C
H

IP
)

G
G

D
a

y
-t

o
-d

a
y

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 w

it
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 &

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s

e
c

to
r.

  
C

H
IP

 W
o

rk
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r,

 f
o

c
u

s
s

in
g

 

o
n

 h
o

w
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 O

x
o

n
 L

o
c

a
l 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

  
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
s

it
e

 i
n

 B
a

n
b

u
ry

 (
O

ri
g

in
 

1
1

) 
n

o
w

 u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 F

ir
s

tl
in

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 n
e

a
ri

n
g

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
o

ti
n

g
s

 f
o

r 
C

ro
m

p
to

n
 T

e
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y

's
 n

e
w

 H
Q

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
 O

n
-g

o
in

g
 

d
is

c
u

s
s

io
n

s
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

s
it

e
 o

w
n

e
rs

, 
b

u
s

in
e

s
s

e
s

 a
n

d
 i

n
v

e
s

to
rs

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t.
 

E
x

p
o

rt
in

g
 C

lu
b

 m
e

t 
w

it
h

 2
5

 b
u

s
in

e
s

s
e

s
, 

fa
c

ili
ta

te
d

 b
y

 C
D

C
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
e

v
e

n
ts

 o
n

 I
n

d
ia

 a
n

d
 C

h
in

a
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i

n
 c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti

o
n

 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
c

to
r,

 u
ti

lis
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
h

e
rw

e
ll 

d
a

ta
b

a
s

e
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
lo

c
a

l 
c

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
.

S
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
B

a
n

b
u

ry
 O

ld
 T

o
w

n
 A

s
s

o
c

ia
ti

o
n

's
 P

a
rt

y
 o

n
 1

6
 J

u
ly

, 
a

n
 e

v
e

n
t 

to
 a

g
a

in
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 t

h
e

 C
D

C
-l

e
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 P
a

rs
o

n
s

 S
t 

a
n

d
 

a
tt

ra
c

t 
e

x
tr

a
 v

is
it

o
rs

 a
n

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
p

ri
v

a
te

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t.

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2
 

S
u
b
-R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s

C
h
e
rw
e
ll
-s
p
e
c
if
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s

Page 49



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 7

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

 1

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
1

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

 2

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
1

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 2
0
1
1
/2
0
1
2
 

  
B

a
n

b
u

ry
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

G
G

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 b

y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
t 

th
is

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
n

d
a

 r
e

le
v

a
n

c
e

  
B

ic
e

s
te

r 
V

is
io

n
G

G
S

u
c

c
e

s
s

fu
l 

tr
a

n
s

fe
r 

o
f 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
ili

ty
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
s

e
c

to
r 

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
s

  
K

id
lin

g
to

n
 V

ill
a

g
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
G

G
A

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 b
y

  
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
t 

B
o

a
rd

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
. 

R
e

c
e

n
t 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 h

a
v

e
 d

is
c

u
s

s
e

d
 M

a
rk

e
t;

 P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

is
a

ti
o

n
; 

S
tr

e
e

t 
fu

rn
it

u
re

; 
c

a
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
.

  
H

o
m

e
le

s
s

n
e

s
s

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

G
G

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

u
e

 t
o

 h
a

rd
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
s

o
c

ia
l 

h
o

u
s

in
g

 n
o

m
in

a
ti

o
n

s
. 

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
s

s
is

ta
n

c
e

 a
re

 s
ti

ll 

in
c

re
a

s
in

g
, 

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

  
C

h
e

rw
e

ll 
R

S
L

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 &
 S

a
n

c
tu

a
ry

 

  
H

o
u

s
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
G

G

W
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 v

e
ry

 p
o

s
it

iv
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k

 f
ro

m
 B

ro
m

fo
rd

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 C

h
e

rw
e

ll 
R

S
L

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

G
ro

u
p

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

tw
o

-w
a

y
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l.

 T
h

e
y

 

s
a

id
 i

t 
w

a
s

 w
e

ll 
o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

, 
e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

fu
l,

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
 a

w
a

re
. 

It
's

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s

t 
e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 

th
e

y
 k

n
o

w

  
N

W
 B

ic
e

s
te

r 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 B
o

a
rd

G
G

T
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 B
o

a
rd

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
s

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

to
 p

ro
g

re
s

s
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 E

c
o

 B
ic

e
s

te
r 

p
ro

je
c

t.
 T

h
e

 n
e

x
t 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 i
s

 s
c

h
e

d
u

le
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 

p
la

c
e

 o
n

 2
7

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

.

  
B

a
n

b
u

ry
 B

ri
g

h
te

r 
F

u
tu

re
s

G
G

W
o

rk
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 p

ro
g

re
s

s
 e

v
e

n
 t

h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 i
n

 T
h

e
m

e
 L

e
a

d
s

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l

a
s

t 
m

o
n

th
. 

  

N
e

w
 T

h
e

m
e

 L
e

a
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 r

e
fo

c
u

s
 t

o
 e

n
s

u
re

 m
o

m
e

n
tu

m
 i

s
 n

o
t 

lo
s

t.

Page 50



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 8

O
w
n
e
r

G
ro
s
s
 

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

G
ro
s
s

R
A
G

N
e
t 

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

N
e
t 
R
A
G

G
ro
s
s

 R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

G
ro
s
s

R
A
G

N
e
t

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

N
e
t 
R
A
G

 R
S
0
1

 D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 &
 

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

In
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s

Ia
n
 D
a
v
ie
s

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
n
 n
o
t 
b
re
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
y
c
le
 o
f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 i
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
is
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 l
if
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 
n
e
e
d
 w
il
l 
n
o
t 
b
e
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
. 
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 

s
u
ff
e
r.
 T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 a
c
u
te
 i
n
 a
re
a
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 

N
e
it
h
ro
p
, 
R
u
s
c
o
te
 a
n
d
 G
ri
m
s
b
u
ry
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 w
h
e
re
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t'
s
 i
n
d
ic
e
s
 o
f 
m
u
lt
ip
le
 d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
.

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

6
A

•
 R
S
.0
1
a
 L
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

(p
e
o
p
le
/c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
) 
a
s
 m

a
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 c
a
n
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 s
o

•
 R
S
.0
1
b
 M
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 c
le
a
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

•
 R
S
.0
1
c
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
ra
n
ts
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s

•
 R
S
.0
1
d
 L
S
P
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 B
ri
g
h
te
r 
F
u
tu
re
s
 i
n
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

•
 R
S
.0
1
e
 C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 f
u
n
d
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 i
n
 C
D
C
 b
u
d
g
e
t

•
 R
S
.0
1
f 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 r
o
le
 i
n
 p
la
c
e

•
 R
S
.0
1
g
 Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 p
la
c
e

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

 R
S
0
2

 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
E
c
o
 

T
o
w
n

Jo
h
n
 H
o
a
d
 

T
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 a
re
 t
h
a
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
o
li
c
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 i
n
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
th
e
 N
W
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
E
c
o
-T
o
w
n
. 
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 m

a
y
 

fa
il
 t
o
 f
u
ll
y
 e
x
p
lo
it
 t
h
e
 E
c
o
-T
o
w
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

li
v
in
g
.

H
ig
h
 1
6

R
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

 R
S
.0
2
a
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
li
c
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk

•
 R
S
.0
2
b
 E
c
o
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
T
o
w
n
 P
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 &
 r
e
la
te
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 w
it
h
 p
ri
v
a
te
/p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
c
to
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs

•
 R
S
.0
2
c
 D
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 P
ro
je
c
t 
T
e
a
m

H
ig
h
 1
6

R
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

 R
S
0
3

 L
o
c
a
l 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk

P
h
il
ip
 C
la
rk
e

T
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 i
s
 

n
o
t 
p
re
p
a
re
d
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
, 
in
 t
im

e
, 
o
r 
is
 f
o
u
n
d
 u
n
s
o
u
n
d
 a
t 

p
u
b
li
c
 e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 
S
u
c
h
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

ri
s
k
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 s
p
e
c
u
la
ti
v
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

u
n
d
e
s
ir
a
b
le
 m

a
jo
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 /
 o
r 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
n
 c
o
n
te
s
ti
n
g
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
. 
A
n
 u
n
s
o
u
n
d
 p
la
n
 

w
o
u
ld
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 r
e
p
e
a
t 
2
 t
o
 3
 

y
e
a
rs
 w
o
rk
 a
t 
h
ig
h
 c
o
s
t.

H
ig
h
 2
0

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
5

A !

•
 R
S
.0
3
a
 L
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 C
L
G
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s

•
 R
S
.0
3
b
 T
a
k
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
, 
to
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
fo
rm

 

o
u
r 
p
o
s
it
io
n

•
 R
S
.0
3
c
 A
s
k
 o
u
r 
M
P
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 G
o
v
t.
 M
in
is
te
rs
 i
f 

c
la
ri
ty
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 o
n
 L
o
c
a
li
s
m
 B
il
l

•
 R
S
.0
3
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
 i
n
 p
u
b
li
c
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 n
e
w
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

fi
g
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
in
fo
rm

s
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 C
o
re
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

•
 R
S
.0
3
e
 W

o
rk
 w
it
h
 L
D
F
 A
d
v
is
o
ry
 P
a
n
e
l 
in
 f
o
rm

u
la
ti
n
g
 

re
v
is
e
d
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 &
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t

H
ig
h
 1
6

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

 R
S
0
4
 

 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 &

 S
o
c
ia
l 

 C
h
a
n
g
e
s

Jo
h
n
 H
o
a
d
 

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 

to
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
fu
lf
il
 i
ts
 r
o
le
 a
s
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
o
f 
to
p
 q
u
a
li
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
ri
v
e
n
 b
y
 a
 c
le
a
r 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
.

H
ig
h
 1
6

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

 R
S
.0
4
a
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s

•
 R
S
.0
4
b
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
re
la
te
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s

•
 R
S
.0
4
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
la
n
s
 &
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s

H
ig
h
 1
6

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

 R
S
0
5

 H
o
rt
o
n
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l

Ia
n
 D
a
v
ie
s

T
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 H
o
rt
o
n
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
s
 a
 f
a
c
il
it
y
 

th
a
t 
m
e
e
ts
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
re
 t
h
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ra
b
il
it
y
 a
n
d
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
a
 

re
v
is
e
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
p
a
e
d
ia
tr
ic
s
 

a
n
d
 o
b
s
te
tr
ic
s
. 
F
a
il
u
re
 o
f 
e
it
h
e
r 
w
il
l 
je
o
p
a
rd
is
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 H
o
rt
o
n
.

H
ig
h
 1
6

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

 R
S
.0
5
a
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
C
T
 i
n
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
in
g
 O
R
H
T
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls

•
 R
S
.0
5
b
 P
ro
v
id
in
g
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
d
e
li
v
e
ra
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re

•
 R
S
.0
5
c
 G
a
in
in
g
 c
o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s
 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t

•
 R
S
.0
5
d
 E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
rs
 a
re
 b
ri
e
fe
d
 &
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 

to
 p
la
y
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 r
o
le

•
 R
S
.0
5
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
 w
it
h
 

O
R
H
T
/G
P
/O
C
C
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

H
ig
h
 1
6

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

N
e

w
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 m

o
d

e
ls

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
C

P
N

 s
e

t 
u

p
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

w
id

e
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

c
to

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 H
o

rt
o

n
. 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 H

o
rt

o
n

 d
u

e
 

to
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 a

t 
th

e
 O

R
H

T
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
s
a

m
e

 o
r 

s
im

ila
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
t 

lo
w

e
r 

c
o

s
t.

 C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 g

y
n

a
e

c
o

lo
g

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 -

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

u
t 

a
n

 a
 n

e
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
b

e
d

s
.

 R
S
0
6

 T
h
e
 N
a
tu
ra
l 

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

E
d
 P
o
tt
e
r

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
ta
k
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
it
s
 o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
s
 s
e
t 
b
y
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t,
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 i
ts
 o
w
n
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
it
s
 

D
is
tr
ic
t'
s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
rb
o
n
 

fo
o
tp
ri
n
ts
.

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
5

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

•
 R
S
.0
6
a
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
a
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 c
li
m
a
te

•
 R
S
.0
6
b
 C
le
a
r 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 f
o
r 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

•
 R
S
.0
6
c
 R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 g
ro
u
p
s

•
 R
S
.0
6
d
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 C
li
m
a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
5

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r
 2
0
1
1
/
2
0
1
2

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
  
3
0
 S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
1

C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
is
k
 H
e
a
d
in
g

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
s

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
  
3
0
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
1

Page 51



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 8

O
w
n
e
r

G
ro
s
s
 

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

G
ro
s
s

R
A
G

N
e
t 

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

N
e
t 
R
A
G

G
ro
s
s

 R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

G
ro
s
s

R
A
G

N
e
t

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

N
e
t 
R
A
G

R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r
 2
0
1
1
/
2
0
1
2

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
  
3
0
 S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
1

C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
is
k
 H
e
a
d
in
g

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
  
3
0
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
1

 R
S
0
8

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

K
a
re
n
 C
u
rt
in

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
in
 a
n
 u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

c
li
m
a
te
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 

it
s
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
P
o
o
r 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 a
ls
o
 

te
n
d
 t
o
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
A
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
d
u
c
e
s
 o
u
r 
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 o
n
 

in
te
re
s
t 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 m

u
s
t 
a
ls
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

a
n
d
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
s
s
e
ts
 w
il
l 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
b
u
il
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts
. 
F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 d
o
 e
it
h
e
r 
w
il
l 
re
s
u
lt
 

in
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 s
h
o
rt
fa
ll
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 t
a
x
 a
n
d
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
to
 f
u
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
.

H
ig
h
 1
6

R
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

 R
S
.0
8
a
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
1
/1
2

•
 R
S
.0
8
b
 M
e
d
iu
m
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
it
y
 a
n
a
ly
s
is

•
 R
S
.0
8
c
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g

•
 R
S
.0
8
d
 D
a
s
h
b
o
a
rd
 -
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

•
 R
S
.0
8
e
 P
u
b
li
c
 p
ro
m
is
e
 o
f 
£
1
m
 c
o
s
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

•
 R
S
.0
8
f 
S
h
a
re
d
 S
e
n
io
r 
M
g
t 
te
a
m
 w
it
h
 S
N
D
C

•
 R
S
.0
8
g
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 W

o
rk
s
h
o
p
s

•
 R
S
.0
8
h
 B
u
il
d
in
g
 B
lo
c
k
 T
e
m
p
la
te
s

H
ig
h
 1
6

R
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

R
S
0
9

S
h
a
re
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 

S
o
u
th
 

N
o
rt
h
a
m
p
to
n
s
h
ir

e
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il

Ia
n
 D
a
v
ie
s

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
a
il
 

to
 b
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
il
l 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 

a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 i
ts
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
w
it
h
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
u
tt
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
. 
O
th
e
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
d
v
e
rs
e
 a
ff
e
c
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
:

•
 L
o
s
s
 o
f 
k
e
y
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
li
n
in
g
 m

o
ra
le
 

•
 L
o
s
s
 o
f 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 

•
 L
e
g
a
l 
c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 

•
 D
e
c
li
n
e
 i
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

•
 F
a
il
u
re
 o
f 
IC
T
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 b
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 f
o
r 

s
h
a
re
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

•
 P
o
li
ti
c
a
l 
C
h
a
n
g
e

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 l
is
t 
o
f 
ri
s
k
s
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 d
e
ta
il
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
ta
in
 d
e
ta
il
s
 o
f 
ri
s
k
, 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
 m

it
ig
a
ti
o
n
s
.

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

 R
S
0
9
a
 J
o
in
t 
A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 S
1
1
3
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t

•
 R
S
0
9
b
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 w
it
h
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
le
g
a
l 

a
n
d
 H
R
 a
d
v
ic
e

•
 R
S
0
9
c
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 s
e
n
io
r 
e
le
c
te
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 b
o
th
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s

•
 R
S
0
9
d
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 w
il
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 

k
e
e
p
 r
is
k
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
.

•
 R
S
0
9
e
 P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d

•
 R
S
0
9
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e

•
 R
S
0
9
g
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d

•
 R
S
0
9
h
 J
o
in
t 
IC
T
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

In
te

rn
a

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 n
e

w
 j
o

in
t 

s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
s
 p

e
r 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
.

R
S
1
0
 

M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 P
o
li
c
y
 

&
 L
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 

C
h
a
n
g
e

C
la
ir
e
 T
a
y
lo
r

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 f
a
il
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
n
e
w
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 o
r 
p
o
li
c
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
In
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
c
a
p
it
a
li
s
e
 

o
n
 n
e
w
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
K
e
y
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
re
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
li
s
m
 b
il
l,
 t
h
e
 b
ig
 s
o
c
ie
ty
 a
g
e
n
d
a
, 
p
e
e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 m

o
d
e
ls
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
, 
n
e
w
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 e
tc
. 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 p
o
li
c
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 c
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 

n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 l
e
g
a
ll
y
 c
o
m
p
li
a
n
t,
 f
a
il
in
g
 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 n
e
w
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 n
e
w
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 o
r 
p
a
th
fi
n
d
e
r 

p
ro
je
c
ts
, 
a
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
’s
 r
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 a
s
 

a
 h
ig
h
 p
e
rf
o
rm

e
r 
a
n
d
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
r,
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 

H
ig
h
 1
6

R
M
e
d
iu
m
 

6
A

 R
S
.1
0
a
 C
IP
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
e
m
e
rg
in
g
 p
o
li
c
y
 &
 a
ll
o
c
a
te
s
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 v
ia
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m

•
 R
S
.1
0
b
 C
IP
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P
M
F
 s
y
s
te
m
 m

o
n
th
ly

•
 R
S
.1
0
c
 C
M
T
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
o
li
c
y
 &
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 

a
n
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 b
a
s
is

•
 R
S
.1
0
d
 E
M
T
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
o
li
c
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
t 
re
g
u
la
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

•
 R
S
.1
0
e
 E
m
e
rg
in
g
 n
e
w
 p
o
li
c
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 e
n
te
re
d
 a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 v
ia
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r

H
ig
h
 1
6

R
M
e
d
iu
m
 

6
A

JM
T
 m

e
e
ts
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 p
o
li
c
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
. 

 R
C
0
1

 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 S
a
fe
ty

D
a
v
id
 

M
a
rr
io
tt

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
 f
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 

a
n
d
 w
e
lf
a
re
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 c
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 i
n
ju
ri
e
s
 

a
n
d
 d
e
a
th
, 
h
ig
h
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 c
la
im

s
 a
n
d
 

li
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
.

H
ig
h
 2
0

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
0

A !

 R
C
.0
1
a
 W

id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s

•
 R
C
.0
1
b
 T
ra
in
in
g
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 a
ll
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 

m
a
n
u
a
l 
w
o
rk

•
 R
C
.0
1
c
 R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
a
fe
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 n
o
te
s
 a
re
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s

H
ig
h
 2
0

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
0

A !

 R
C
0
2

 C
a
p
it
a
l 

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

K
a
re
n
 C
u
rt
in

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 i
ts
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 o
r 
in
c
o
m
e
 

fr
o
m
 o
th
e
r 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
s
s
e
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 b
u
il
d
in
g
s
.

H
ig
h
 1
6

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

 r
c
.0
2
a
 T
re
a
s
u
ry
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

•
 r
c
.0
2
b
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 c
o
m
p
li
e
s
 t
o
 C
IP
F
A
 

c
o
d
e

•
 r
c
.0
2
c
 M
in
im

is
e
 e
m
p
ty
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s

•
 r
c
.0
2
d
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
1
/1
2

•
 r
c
.0
2
e
 M
e
d
iu
m
 t
e
rm

 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y

•
 r
c
.0
2
f 
A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

•
 r
c
.0
2
g
 D
a
s
h
b
o
a
rd
 -
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

•
 r
c
.0
2
h
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
T
re
a
s
u
ry
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

•
 r
c
.0
2
i 
C
o
u
n
te
rp
a
rt
y
 L
is
ts

H
ig
h
 1
6

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

 R
C
0
3

 I
C
T
 S
y
s
te
m
s

P
a
t 
S
im

p
s
o
n

1
) 
IC
T
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 D
is
a
s
te
r 
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P
la
n
.

2
) 
L
o
s
s
 o
f 
IC
T
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 c
a
u
s
e
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
.

H
ig
h
 2
0

R
M
e
d
iu
m
 

8
A

•
 r
c
.0
3
a
 6
 m

o
n
th
ly
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
 o
f 
D
is
a
s
te
r 
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 P
la
n

•
 r
c
.0
3
b
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
rc
h
it
e
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

•
 r
c
.0
3
c
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 I
S
O
 2
7
0
0
1

H
ig
h
 2
0

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
A
 D
a
ta
 R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 t
e
s
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
4
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P
la
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 R
is
k
s

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
s

Page 52



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 8

O
w
n
e
r

G
ro
s
s
 

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

G
ro
s
s

R
A
G

N
e
t 

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

N
e
t 
R
A
G

G
ro
s
s

 R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

G
ro
s
s

R
A
G

N
e
t

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

N
e
t 
R
A
G

R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r
 2
0
1
1
/
2
0
1
2

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
  
3
0
 S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
1

C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
is
k
 H
e
a
d
in
g

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
  
3
0
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
1

R
C
0
4

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

L
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n

C
la
ir
e
 T
a
y
lo
r

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 m

a
y
 b
e
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 l
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 l
o
s
s
 

o
f 
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 i
f 
it
 i
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
m
p
li
a
n
t 
w
it
h
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
.

H
ig
h
 2
0

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

•
 r
c
.0
4
a
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 s
c
h
e
m
e

•
 r
c
.0
4
b
 M
a
n
d
a
to
ry
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 t
ra
in
in
g

•
 r
c
.0
4
c
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 P
M
F

•
 r
c
.0
4
d
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
E
Q
IA

•
 r
c
.0
4
d
 I
D
E
A
 p
e
e
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
0

•
 r
c
.0
4
e
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
la
n

•
 r
c
.0
4
f 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
v
e
 p
a
n
e
ls
 f
o
r 
E
Q
IA

H
ig
h
 2
0

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

ri
s
k
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
, 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
, 

e
s
p
e
c
ia
ll
y
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 e
q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
. 

R
C
0
6
 

C
iv
il
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y

P
a
u
l 
M
a
rs
to
n
-

W
e
s
to
n

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
C
iv
il
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
, 
le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
in
ju
ry
 o
r 

d
e
a
th
, 
c
iv
il
 u
n
re
s
t 
a
n
d
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
.

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
5

A !

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
0

A !

 r
c
.0
6
a
 A
s
 a
 C
a
te
g
o
ry
 1
 R
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 h
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 

to
 p
re
p
a
re
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
n
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 P
la
n

•
 r
c
.0
6
b
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
te
s
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

•
 r
c
.0
6
c
 T
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
ff

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
5

A !

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
0

A !

R
C
0
7

M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 D
a
ta
 &
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

C
la
ir
e
 T
a
y
lo
r

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
u
n
re
li
a
b
le
 d
a
ta
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 p
o
li
c
y
 m

a
k
in
g
 p
u
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o
f 
m
a
k
in
g
 p
o
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
re
 m

a
d
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
is
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
a
tu
re
 

o
f 
th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
 I
f 
d
a
ta
 i
s
 o
u
t 
o
f 
d
a
te
, 
in
c
o
m
p
le
te
 o
r 

in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
, 
th
o
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 m

a
y
 t
u
rn
 o
u
t 
to
 b
e
 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
d
.

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
n
o
t 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 F
O
I 
o
r 

E
IR
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 p
u
tt
in
g
 C
D
C
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
a
 c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r.

P
o
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w
il
l 
a
ls
o
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 u
n
a
b
le
 

to
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
 a
g
e
n
d
a
.

H
ig
h
 1
6

R
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

 R
C
.0
7
a
 S
in
g
le
 t
ru
s
te
d
 d
a
ta
 s
o
u
rc
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
e
rs

•
 R
C
.0
7
b
 U
s
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
tr
u
s
te
d
 &
 r
e
li
a
b
le
 d
a
ta
 s
o
u
rc
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
o
w
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
.

•
 R
C
.0
7
c
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs

•
 R
C
.0
7
d
 C
le
a
r 
D
a
ta
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 p
o
li
c
y

•
 R
C
.0
7
e
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

H
ig
h
 1
6

R
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

ri
s
k
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 n

o
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

h
is

 m
o

n
th

R
C
0
8

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
ra
u
d

K
a
re
n
 C
u
rt
in

A
s
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
la
rg
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
e
 s
iz
e
 a
n
d
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 

o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
u
ts
 u
s
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
lo
s
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 f
ra
u
d
 b
o
th
 f
ro
m
 

w
it
h
in
 a
n
d
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
. 
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
lw
a
y
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
h
is
 

ri
s
k
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 m

a
n
y
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 c
o
u
n
te
r 
fr
a
u
d
. 
A
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 

re
s
e
a
rc
h
, 
fr
a
u
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
le
ra
te
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 g
lo
b
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
o
w
n
tu
rn
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 m

a
y
 f
a
ls
if
y
 f
ig
u
re
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 l
o
o
k
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
a
n
d
 d
e
b
t-
s
tr
a
p
p
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
re
 m

o
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 

c
o
m
m
it
 f
ra
u
d
.

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

 R
C
0
8
.a
 F
ra
u
d
 I
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t,
 d
e
te
c
t,
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 a
n
d
 s
a
n
c
ti
o
n
 c
a
s
e
s
 o
f 
fr
a
u
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e

•
 R
C
0
8
.b
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
a
u
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 

a
ll
 s
ta
ff

•
 R
C
0
8
.c
 I
n
-d
e
p
th
 t
ra
in
in
g
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 B
ri
b
e
ry
 A
c
t 
to
 f
ro
n
t 

li
n
e
 s
ta
ff
 &
 o
th
e
r 
s
ta
ff
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d

•
 R
C
0
8
.d
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F
ra
u
d
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 &
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 m

a
tc
h
in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
s

•
 R
C
0
8
.e
 A
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
 P
o
li
c
ie
s
 (
A
n
ti
-f
ra
u
d
 &
 

C
o
rr
u
p
ti
o
n
, 
S
a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
B
ri
b
e
ry
)

•
 R
C
0
8
.f
 N
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
/B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 

o
th
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
 &
 D
W
&
P

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

R
P
0
2

L
o
c
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

C
la
ir
e
 T
a
y
lo
r

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
a
il
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 

d
e
li
v
e
r 
it
s
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
li
c
, 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 r
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
, 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 

a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 l
o
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 l
e
s
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
L
o
w 4

G

 R
P
.0
2
a
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d

•
 R
P
.0
2
b
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk

•
 R
P
.0
2
c
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 H
a
n
d
b
o
o
k

•
 R
P
.0
2
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

L
S
P
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s

•
 R
P
.0
2
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
s
e
lf
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

•
 R
P
.0
2
f 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 &
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 

c
a
p
it
a
li
s
e
 o
n
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 &
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s

•
 R
P
0
2
.1
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

R
is

k
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 g
a

p
s
 b

e
in

g
 f

ill
e

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
. 

R
is

k
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

h
a

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
L

A
A

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
h

a
t 

is
 n

o
w

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

. 
T

h
e

 

B
o

a
rd

 h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
 p

ro
to

c
l 
fo

r 
a

llo
c
a

ti
n

g
 f

u
n

d
s
. 

R
P
0
3

C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

C
h
ri
s
 

R
o
th
w
e
ll

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
a
il
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 c
o
ll
a
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
ly
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
s
a
fe
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 

c
ri
m
e

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

 R
P
.0
3
a
 B
i-
m
o
n
th
ly
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
4
 A
c
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
s
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 

d
e
li
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

•
 r
p
.0
3
b
 Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

•
 R
P
.0
3
c
 M
o
n
it
o
re
d
 v
ia
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

R
P
0
4

L
o
c
a
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

(O
x
fo
rd
 C
it
y
 &
 

S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 

M
id
la
n
d
s
)

Jo
h
n
 H
o
a
d
 

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
a
il
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

to
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 b
o
d
ie
s
 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 a
n
d
 i
n
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re
a
 a
n
d
 f
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 

fu
ll
y
 e
x
p
lo
it
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
.

A
 r
e
la
te
d
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
e
 a
b
il
it
y
/i
n
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
C
h
e
rw
e
ll
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
th
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t.

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

•
 R
P
.0
4
a
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
/F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n

•
 R
P
.0
4
b
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !
M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

R
P
0
5

O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 

W
a
s
te
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 -
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

E
d
 P
o
tt
e
r 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 e
x
is
t 
to
 r
e
g
u
la
te
 f
u
n
d
s
 f
lo
w
in
g
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 (
O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
).
 T
h
e
s
e
 

a
re
 l
e
g
a
ll
y
 b
in
d
in
g
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

h
a
v
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
p
re
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a
ll
 

th
e
s
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 (
la
n
d
fi
ll
 d
iv
e
rs
io
n
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
) 
in
 t
h
e
 

fu
tu
re
. 
T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 t
h
re
a
te
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 O
x
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 

W
a
s
te
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

H
ig
h
 1
6

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

•
 R
P
0
5
.a
 W

o
rk
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 g
re
a
te
r 
v
o
ti
n
g
 p
o
w
e
r

•
 R
P
0
5
.b
 F
u
ll
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 m

o
v
e
d
 b
y
 

C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts

H
ig
h
 1
6

R

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

1
2

A !

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 R
is
k
s

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 R
is
k
s

Page 53



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 8

O
w
n
e
r

G
ro
s
s
 

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

G
ro
s
s

R
A
G

N
e
t 

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

N
e
t 
R
A
G

G
ro
s
s

 R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

G
ro
s
s

R
A
G

N
e
t

R
is
k
 

R
a
ti
n
g

N
e
t 
R
A
G

R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r
 2
0
1
1
/
2
0
1
2

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
  
3
0
 S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
1

C
o
n
tr
o
ls

R
is
k
 H
e
a
d
in
g

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
  
3
0
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
1

R
P
0
6

H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 

W
e
ll
b
e
in
g
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

P
a
u
l 
M
a
rs
to
n
-

W
e
s
te
rn
 

T
h
e
 r
is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
fa
il
u
re
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 a
n
d
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 n
e
w
 c
o
u
n
ty
 w
id
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
il
l 

p
u
t 
C
D
C
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
n
o
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 i
ts
 S
a
fe
, 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 

T
h
ri
v
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
. 
T
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ro
le
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
ty
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
li
c
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 u
n
d
e
r 
n
e
w
 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 w
il
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

to
 e
n
s
u
re
 C
h
e
rw
e
ll
’s
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
re
 r
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 a
re
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d

M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

M
e
d
iu
m
 

6
A

 R
P
0
6
.a
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 r
o
le
 o
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 r
e
la
te
d
 

is
s
u
e
s

•
 R
P
0
6
.b
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
o
u
n
ty
-w

id
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s

•
 R
P
0
6
.c
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t

•
 R
P
0
6
.d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
c
to
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

w
id
e
r 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n

M
e
d
iu
m
 

9
A

M
e
d
iu
m
 

6
A

N
e

w
 H

&
W

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 r
o

le
s
 f

o
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
c
ils

 v
ia

 a
n

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

B
o

a
rd

I
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 b
y
:-

R
is
k
 r
a
ti
n
g
 s
ta
y
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e

L
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 

R
is
k
 r
a
ti
n
g
 i
m
p
r
o
v
e
d

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 (
ri
s
k
 r
a
ti
n
g
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
d
) 

L
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
 

R
is
k
 r
a
ti
n
g
 w
o
r
s
e
n
e
d

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d
e
c
li
n
e
d
 (
ri
s
k
 r
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
)

L
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 

L
o
w

M
o
n
it
o
r
in
g
 R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

T
h
is
 r
is
k
 m

a
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 s
o
m
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
ri
s
k
 m

it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d
 (
if
 i
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
),
 b
u
t 
g
o
o
d
 h
o
u
s
e
k
e
e
p
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
re
m
a
in
s
 l
o
w
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
. 
 M
o
n
it
o
r 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
.

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 R
is
k
s

R
e
v
ie
w
 P
e
r
io
d
ic
a
ll
y

T
h
is
 r
is
k
 i
s
 u
n
li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
 s
ta
tu
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
.

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m

R
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 A
c
ti
v
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

H
ig
h
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
/ 
H
ig
h
 P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
: 
 t
h
is
 r
is
k
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 d
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
o
s
u
re
 a
t 
a
n
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 l
e
v
e
l.
  
E
s
c
a
la
te
 u
p
w
a
rd
s
.

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 P
la
n
s
 R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

A
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 p
la
n
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 e
a
rl
y
 w
a
rn
in
g
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 t
o
 d
e
te
c
t 
a
n
y
 d
e
v
ia
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
ro
fi
le
. 
 E
s
c
a
la
te
 u
p
w
a
rd
s
.

H
ig
h
 M
e
d
iu
m

Page 54



 

   

Executive  
 

Draft Budget 1, Corporate Plan and  
Service Plans 2012 - 2013 

 

6 December 2011 
 

Report of Head of Finance and Procurement 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The Council has to adopt a budget for 2012/13 as the basis for calculating its level of 
Council Tax and has to base that budget on its plans for service delivery during the 
year, recognising any changes in service demand that may arise in future years.  
This is the first of two opportunities that the Executive has to shape and refine the 
interaction between the Corporate Plan, the service plans that underpin the corporate 
plan and financial matters before the final budget is presented to the Council on the 
27 February 2012. 
 

 
This report is public 

 
 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended: 

 

(1) to endorse the draft Council Business Plan and Strategic Priorities for 2012-
13 (detailed in Appendix 2); 

 
(2) to endorse the proposed service priorities for 2012-13 (detailed in Appendix 

3); 
 
(3) to consider the draft budget (detailed in Appendix 1) in the context of the 

Council’s service objectives and strategic priorities;  
 
(4) to note the areas of revenue growth as detailed in the body of this report 

detailed in Appendix 1 – Para 1.21; 
 
(5) to note the areas of additional income or cost reductions that will be 

considered in order to get to a balanced 2012/13 budget detailed in Appendix 
1 – Para  1.26 

 
(6) to note the recommendations of the scrutiny reviews of discretionary 

expenditure and the capital programme that were considered at the 
Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board on 22 November 2011 and 
detailed in Appendix 4. 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 55



 

   

(7) to advise of any other matters they would like taken into consideration in 
producing a balanced budget for the meeting of the Executive on 6th February 
2012; 

 
(8) to endorse the draft revenue and council business plan as the basis for 

consultation. 
 
 
 
 
Executive Summary 

 
 
1.1 This report sets out the latest projections of the Council’s Revenue and 

Budget for the period 2012/2013. The budget strategy approved on 5 
September 2011 seeks to secure the savings requirements whilst maintaining 
the focus on protection for front line services wherever possible. 
 

1.2 In light of the severe financial challenges a huge amount of work has been 
progressed from May 2011 to November 2011 in order to identify actions to 
reduce the Council’s net budget position in 2012/13 and over the medium term 
forecast period to 2015/16.  

 
1.3 The Council has met its 2011/12 public promise to deliver at least £1m of 

budget reductions by April 2012 as well as delivering the 2011/12 
Improvement plan which includes the completion of the Value for Money 
Reviews. 

 
1.4 In view of the enforced government grant reduction a programme of identifying 

further areas of budget reductions or income generation has resulted in a 
comprehensive list of building blocks and general budget efficiencies. These 
reductions have been matched to the Council’s priorities, recognise the 
requirements of the Corporate Plan and have focussed on minimising the 
impact on front line services. 

 
1.5 The budget will form the financial expression of the Council’s strategic 

priorities and service delivery plans for 2012/13; the allocation of resources 
against agreed service priorities (as seen in Appendix 3) is necessary in order 
to achieve its strategic priorities. 

 
1.6 The Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board have undertaken a scrutiny 

role over the 2012/13 budget focusing primarily on areas of discretionary 
spend and the proposed Capital Programme for 2012/13. The identified areas 
of discretionary within the authority total £3.1m, approximately 27% of our 
overall net budget. The outcome of this work will be reported to the Resources 
and Performance Scrutiny Board meeting on 10th January 2012 and any 
recommendations will be considered in by the Executive for inclusion in the 
final drafts of the 2012/13 budget.  

 
1.7 There is a statutory requirement for the Council to set a balanced budget by 

11 March 2012 and this report provides a first draft of the 2012/13 revenue 
and capital budget.  

 
1.8 The projected shortfall at draft 1 requires a further reduction in costs or 

increase in income of £165,228 is required.  

Page 56



 

   

 
1.9 A number of areas to review have been identified in Appendix 1(Para 1.26).  

The outcome of these reviews and their implication on the current budget 
shortfall will be presented to the Executive in February 2012. At this stage it is 
expected that we will achieve a balanced budget for 2012/13. 

 
1.10 Further work will continue on identifying additional budget reductions for future 

years and these will be detailed in the Medium Term Forecast which will be 
updated and presented as part of the final budget report. 

 
1.11 The draft 2012/13 revenue and capital budget and corporate plan will form the 

basis for consultation with our stakeholders and the output of this consultation 
will be considered in formulating the final 2012/13 budgets and Corporate 
Plan. 

 
 
Background Information 

 
 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.5 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Council Business Plan and Strategic Priorities   
 
The council’s business plan has been reviewed for the period 2012-13. This 
review reflects the changing economic situation, the implications of local 
government grant reductions as detailed in the comprehensive spending 
review and significant strategic developments affecting the district such as the 
eco-town. For 2012/13 the joint management arrangements with South 
Northamptonshire Council have been included within the plan as part of the 
approach to securing savings and service improvements.  
 
The plan also takes into account the wide range of public consultation we 
undertake around local priorities through both our annual satisfaction survey 
and budget consultation workshops.  
 
The plan continues to reflect the council’s four strategic priorities Cherwell, a 
district of opportunity, safe, healthy and thriving communities, a cleaner, 
greener district and an accessible, value for money council. Under each 
strategic priority there are a number of key objectives which will be delivered 
through a series of key projects, actions and targets.  These will be detailed in 
service plans and monitored through the council’s performance management 
framework.  
 
The objectives within the council business plan for 2012-13 (and attached at 
appendix 2) are currently in draft form and will be confirmed after the public 
consultation in December. Detailed milestones and measures will be set in the 
final quarter of the year taking into account the latest performance information 
and budgetary position. The developing business plan measures will be 
presented to Executive and Council with the drafts of the budget in January 
and February 2012.    
 
As in previous years a set of public pledges will be drawn from the business 
plan. These will form a core set of performance milestones for the council 
which directly reflect the strategic priorities and will be monitored through the 
corporate performance scorecard. They will be published within the council tax 
leaflet.  
 

Page 57



 

   

2.6 
 
 
 
 

It should be noted that the term council business plan has been used for 
2012/13 rather than corporate plan (which has been used in previous years). 
This change has been made to reflect more commonly used terminology and 
to ensure that the council has a publically identifiable suite of business 
documents setting out its strategic and financial plans which are then reviewed 
in the annual report. The business plan, budget and annual report will form this 
suite.  
  

 
 

 
Service Plans 
 

 
2.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.9 

  
Individual service plans are being developed alongside the draft budget and 
council business plan. They will include the detailed activities that deliver the 
council’s strategic priorities as well as consultation feedback, a review of the 
strategic challenges facing each service, and actions to deliver both ‘business 
as usual’ and any significant service projects. The service plans underpin the 
council’s business plan and provide the operational detail that ensures the 
council’s priorities are delivered.  

 
Copies of these draft service plans for 2012/13 will be made available on the 
Council’s intranet site for Members to review in February 2012. Final drafts will 
form part of the background papers for the budget and council business plan 
reports presented to Executive and Council in February 2011. 

 

Current Position and Forecast Out-turn 2011-12 

 

The starting position for the 2012-13 Budget is the current year’s Budget for 
2011-12. Latest forecasts predict services to be delivered within overall budget 
this financial year. A Q3 finance report will be reported in February 2012 at the 
same time as the final 2012/13 budget proposal along with a review of 
reserves. 

 
2.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.11 
 
 
 
2.12 
 
 
 
 
2.13 
 
 

 

In light of the challenging financial position that faces the Council over the 
medium term, work began on the 2012/2013 budget almost immediately after 
setting the 2011/2012 Budget in March 2011 in order that cost reductions 
could be considered well enough in advance to maximise contribution to the 
2012/13 budget and understand the Medium Term Implications. 

 

Local Government Resource Review 

 

The local Government Finance Settlement announced in 2011/12 provided 
provisional Formula Grant for 2012/13 of £7,553,058.  

 

At the same time it was announced that a review of local government finance 
would be conducted in 2011 which will feed into the distribution of local 
authority resources in 2013/14. This increases the level of uncertainty around 
forecasting resources beyond 2012/13. 

 

On 17 March 2011 the Government launched the Local Government 

Resource Review to consider the way that formula grant and business rates 

Page 58



 

   

 
 
2.14 
 
 
 
 
2.15 
 
 
 
 
 
2.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.17 
 
 
 
 
2.18 
 
 
 
 
 
2.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.20 
 
 
 
 
 
2.21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.22 
 
 

are distributed to local authorities. 

 

As a result a number of consultation papers have been published including 
papers on Council Tax Localisation, Business Rates Localisation and Council 
tax technical reforms. The Council has responded to the first two papers and 
will respond to the latter by the closing date of December 29th 2011.  
 
Until such time as the outcome of these consultations are known and the 
implications of welfare reform understood there remains uncertainty for 
financial planning beyond setting the 2012/13 budgets. The funding situation 
will therefore continue to evolve for some time. 
 
 
The current intention is that any new arrangements will be in place for the 
2013/14 financial year. Until the outcome of the review is known there will be 
considerable uncertainty regarding resources for the Council after 2012/13. 

 

Council Tax 

 

In 2011/12 the Council did not increase its Council tax and therefore received 
a Council Tax Freeze Grant of £155,037, equivalent to a 2.5% increase and 
funding for this for 2012/13. 

 

On the 3rd October 2011, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a new 
support for local authorities to help them freeze council tax in 2012/13 as well. 
If councils decide to freeze or reduce their council tax next year, they will 
receive an additional one year only funding, equivalent to raising their 2011/12 
council tax by 2.5%. 

 

If Cherwell District Council was to freeze its council tax in 2012/13 it would 
receive an additional grant of c. £156,970 for 2012/13 only. The receipt of this 
additional grant has not been incorporated within the projected resources of 
the Council in this first draft of the budget.  

 

New Homes Bonus 

 

As part of the 2011-12 finance settlement, the Government announced a new 
grant called New Homes Bonus. This effectively replaced the Housing and 
Planning Delivery grant as the mechanism for rewarding local authorities that 
were being successful in delivering growth in house numbers. 

 

The new grant provides additional funding equivalent to the extra Council Tax 
being received from new properties, for a period of six years. Cherwell has 
received £439,186 as its first year allocation. On the basis of draft taxbase 
figures at October 2011, we expect to receive a further £680,000 in 2012-13 
(£439,186 related to the second year of the 11/12 allocation plus ~£240,000 
related to the first year of the 2012-13 allocation). 

 

Although the Government has committed to this grant until 2015, the position 
beyond 2012-13 is in some doubt. No new funding is being made available, 

Page 59



 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.24 
 
 

which means that the continuation of New Homes Bonus will depend on sums 
being top sliced from the overall funding allocation for local government. This 
approach is confirmed in the Localisation of Business Rates consultation. It will 
therefore have a redistributive effect, rather than being seen as additional 
funding for the sector. On this basis, some authorities have already questioned 
its equity. 

 

It would therefore be prudent at this stage to consider a strategy for use of the 
allocations that are most likely to be received in the current and next year. Any 
strategy will need to be reviewed in a year’s time, when the overall shape of 
the finance settlement and the future of the New Homes Bonus is more 
certain. 

 

This strategy is being prepared and at this stage no budgetary impact has 
been built into the budget. 

 

 
 

Pay Deal Update 
 
 

 
2.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.26 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.27 
 
 
 
 
2.28 
 

In early 2010 the Council and Unison entered into a collective agreement 
which set out the local pay award for the following 3 years, as follows: 

 

Year % increase 

2010-11 0% 

2011-12  1.80% 

2012-13 1.90% 

 

This agreement was made on the basis of the known financial position at the 
time and was built into the Medium Term Financial Strategy. However based 
on the combination of the government’s pay freeze in June 2011and the 
Council’s financial position a new agreement was reached for  

 
April 2011 0% general pay award 

£250 flat rate increase applied to all grades below £25,000; this 
relates to FTE substantive salaries.  

 

The budget strategy and guidelines for 2012/13 approved by Executive in 
September 2011 incorporated the budget assumption of a 2% pay increase 
and this has been built into this first draft of the budget.  

 

Officers are shortly to commence pay negotiations with Unison with a view to 
reach a new local agreement for 2012/13 onwards bringing this broadly in line 
with both the governments’ position and the council’s budget position. 

 
 

 
Joint Working arrangements with South Northamptonshire 
 

2.29 
 

The approved business case for the joint working arrangements of the senior 
management team with South Northamptonshire detailed £686k worth of 

Page 60



 

   

 
 
2.30 
 
 
2.31 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.32 
 
 
 
2.33 

savings that could be delivered for Cherwell District Council. 
 
The budget for 2011/12 was based on the achievement of £333k worth of 
savings and we are currently projecting that we will achieve in excess of this.   
 
In addition to the savings in relation to the joint management team there have 
also been service based joint arrangements that have been entered to deliver 
further efficiencies. The services are :- 

• Legal & Democratic. 

• Health & Safety. 

• Elections 

• Communications  

• Building Control 
 
With the Joint Management Team now fully recruited and in post we have built 
the remaining £353k (Full year Effect) worth of savings into the base budget 
for 2012/13.  
 
The Medium Term Financial Forecast also assumed a further contribution of 
£130,000 of budget reduction in 2012/13 and although not fully identified as 
yet this has been built into the draft budget. These savings will arise as a result 
of joint working initiatives between services and in the first instance this is 
expected to be predominantly support functions – e.g. ICT, HR, Finance, 
Procurement. 
 

 
 

 
Budget Guidelines and Timetable 
 

2.34 The Executive agreed the budget guidelines, service priorities and timetable at 
its meeting on 5 September 2011 after considering the medium term financial 
forecast and underlying financial strategy. 

 
 

 
The Status of the Budget 
 

2.35 The draft revenue budget as presented has been left, quite deliberately, with a 
funding gap to emphasise that it is work in progress.  This type of gap is not 
unusual at this stage in the process and it can be covered by considering the 
actions listed within Appendix 1.  The funding gap in the draft budget as 
presented is £165,228 and it is important that Members are aware of this 
potential deficit before they finally commit funding against particular priorities 
and/or divert funding from low priority services. 

 
2.36 
 
2.37 
 
 
2.38 
 
 
 
 
2.39 
 

 
A number of areas to review have been identified in Appendix 1(Para 1.26)  
 
As in previous years, the amount available for distribution from the Collection 
Fund will be confirmed for the final draft of the budget. 
 
There are a number of recommendations that have been proposed by the 
Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board from their meeting on 22nd 
November 2011 and if approved by the Executive they can be built into the 
final draft of this budget. 
 
Further work will continue on identifying additional budget reductions for future 
years and these will be detailed in the Medium Term Forecast which will be 

Page 61



 

   

updated and presented as part of the final budget report. 
 

 
 

 
Budget Consultation 
 

2.40 
 

Consultation will commence following approval of this report so that views can 
be sought in sufficient time for them to be taken into consideration when 
formulating the 2012/13 budget and council tax. The general consultation will 
take place via the Council website and in order to meet its statutory obligation 
to consult with business ratepayers meetings will be held with our local 
chambers of commerce. 

  
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 This report presents the Council’s draft 2012/13 Revenue Budget, Capital 

Bids for consideration and Corporate Plan.  
 
3.2 The following options have been identified. The approach in the 

recommendations is believed to be the best way forward. 
 
Option One To review draft revenue budget to date and consider 

actions arising. 
 

Option Two To approve or reject the recommendations above or 
request that Officers provide additional information. 
 

 
Consultations 

 
Executive 
5/9/2011, 17/11/2011 
 
Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board  
27/09/11, 11/10/11, 20/10/11, 10/11/10, 22/11/2011 
 
Corporate Management Team / Joint Management Team    
Various meetings throughout May 2011 to Nov 2011 
 
Implications 

 

Financial: Financial Effects – the significant financial effects of the 
budget are identified in Appendix 1. Any decisions made 
in relation to ongoing expenditure or income in the budget 
for 2012/13 will have repercussions in future years when 
current forecasts indicate the financial environment is 
likely to become increasingly difficult.  The Council has a 
statutory duty to set a balanced budget and could incur 
the intervention of the Secretary of State if it failed to do 
so.   
 
Consideration of this item will fall within the provisions of 
Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, 
and Members affected by those provisions should declare 

Page 62



 

   

accordingly and refrain from voting on the matter. 
 
The council has developed a number of building blocks to 
meet the strain created through the reduction in 
Government grant, these in addition to the £1m public 
promise and additional efficiency savings have been built 
into this first draft of the Budget for 2012/13. 

 Comments checked by Karen Muir, Corporate System 
Accountant, 01295 221559. 

Legal: There is a statutory requirement for the Council to set a 
balanced budget by 11 March 2012 and the draft budget 
is part of that process. 

 Comments checked by Kevin Lane, Head of Law & 
Governance, 03000 030 107. 

Risk Management: The significant risks and assumptions associated with the 
draft budget are outlined in Appendix 1 and a risk 
provision has been considered.  On a broader front, if due 
consideration is not given to matching scarce financial 
resources carefully against properly assessed service 
priorities, the Council may fail in achieving its strategic 
priorities and in its duty to demonstrate value for money. A 
full appraisal of risk will be included in the final budget 
report detailing mitigations and a sensitivity analysis will 
be included in calculating the risk provision 

 Comments checked by Karen Muir, Corporate System 
Accountant, 01295 221559. 

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
All  
 
Executive Lead Member 

 
Councillor Ken Attack   
Lead Member for Financial Management 
 
Document Information –  

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 
Appendix 2 
Appendix 3 
Appendix 4 
 

Draft Revenue 2011/12 Budget and Analysis 
Draft Council Business Plan 2012/13 
Service Priorities 
Resources and Performance Scrutiny Board – Budget 
Scrutiny recommendations  

Background Papers 

2011/12 Budget Booklet 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 
Budget Guidelines 

Page 63



 

   

Report Author Karen Curtin, Head of Finance and Procurement 

Karen Muir, Corporate System Accountant 

Claire Taylor, Corporate Performance Manager 

Contact 
Information 

03000 030 106 

karen.curtin@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

Page 64



 

 

Draft Revenue 2012/13 Budget and Analysis  
 

The Status of the Budget 
 

1.1 This is the first draft of the budget and is currently subject to scrutiny of both revenue and 
capital together with amendments for new information relating to economic climate, and 
confirmation of the amount available for distribution from the Collection Fund. The final 
version of the budget will be presented to the Executive on February 6th 2012 before 
approval by Council on February 27th 2012. 

 
Budget Guidelines 

1.2 The draft General Fund Revenue budget has been prepared in accordance with the 
guidelines agreed by the Executive at its meeting on 5th September 2011.  
 
Economic Climate 

 
1.3 UK economy - following the general election in May 2010, the coalition government has put 

in place an austerity plan to carry out correction of the public sector deficit over the next five 
years.  The inevitable result of fiscal contraction will be major job losses during this period, 
in particular in public sector services.   
 

1.4 This downturn in the economy has given rise to a number of unanticipated budget 
pressures. One of the most immediate impacts of the credit crunch in Cherwell, like 
elsewhere, is the housing market slowing rapidly. This has seen a reduction in the current 
year of planning and land charge income, increase in benefit applications, increased fuel 
costs and these assumptions have been assumed to continue and built into the formation of 
the draft budget and considered in the review of risk. 
 

1.5 Following zero growth in the final half of 2010/11 the UK economy grew by a weaker than 
expected 0.1% in the first quarter of 2011/12, providing a knock on effect to future growth 
prospects.  Growth prospects will be governed by UK consumer sentiment, which is 
currently subdued due to falling disposable income.  Higher VAT, overhanging debt, high 
inflation and concerns over employment are likely to weigh heavily on consumers into the 
future. 

 
1.6 The announcement by the MPC on 6 October of a second round of quantitative easing of 

£75bn emphasised how seriously the MPC now views recession as being a much bigger 
concern than inflation.  Although inflation remains stubbornly high, the MPC’s expectation 
of future falls resulting in an undershoot of its 2% target opened the way for this new round 
of QE.  Inflation beyond 2012 is forecast to fall back towards this target but for the 2012/13 
budget assumptions have been made at CPI minus 1% at September 2011. 

  
1.7 Sector, the Council’s Treasury Management Advisors, are currently of the view that the 

Bank Rate may start to increase during Q4 of the 2012/13 financial year by 0.5%.  For the 
purpose of this draft of the budget we have assumed a reinvestment rate of 1.3% for 
investment income purposes. 

 
1.8 The Council’s decision in preparing the last full MTFS forecast not to rely on investment 

income to deliver services assumes a reduction over 3 years. It is assumed that a base of 
£300k is used in the 2012/13 budget together with an amount to cover the car parking 
income change. The additional investment income achieved will be used to replenish 
reserves and fund one off projects.  

 

Appendix 1 

Page 65



 

 

Medium Term Financial Forecasts 
 
1.9 Our medium term financial forecasts were updated as a result of the Comprehensive 

Spending Review and as a result we are working on the basis of a £5m cumulative savings 
requirement over the next 4 years. The savings identified in draft 1 of the 2012/13 will 
provide a substantial contribution to this and a new medium term financial forecast will be 
included with the budget report in February 2012. 

 
 

Investments in Iceland 
 

1.10 The Council currently has a total of £6.5 million in short term investments (i.e. those with 
maturity periods of up to one year) with one of the affected banks Glitner. The position is 
that, the Council has preferential credit status and as such will recover 100% of this 
balance along with investment income (previously written off). It is still unclear when or how 
the distributions will be made and members will be provided with an update when more 
information is available. 

1.11 The Council made a capitalisation request to Secretary of State to use capital receipts to 
offset any potential losses in relation to the Iceland deposits and processed this as part of 
the 2010/11 accounts. On the basis of the appeal court decision this transaction will be 
reversed in the 2011/12 accounts. 

1.12 No investment income has been built into the 2012/13 budget for the return of the £6.5m 
principle at this stage but this will be reviewed as we prepare the final 2012/13 budget. 

General Fund Revenue Budget 
 

1.13 The draft General Fund Revenue budget is shown in Table 1.  The revenue budget as 
presented has been left, quite deliberately, with a funding gap of £165,228. This type of gap 
is not unusual at this stage in the process and it can be covered by considering the actions 
listed in 1.26. 

 
Table 1  
 

Service Area 
Approved 

Budget 2011/12 
Proposed Budget 

2012/13 Movement 

Community & Environment £8,305,435 £8,128,276 -£177,159 

Resources £4,964,760 £4,658,904 -£305,856 

Development £4,215,039 £3,843,744 -£371,295 

Service Total £17,485,234 £16,630,924 -£854,310 

  % Decrease     5%  

Executive Matters       

Centrally controlled Items £1,465,845 £1,526,312 £60,467 

SNDC Joint Working Savings -£333,000 -£130,000 £203,000 

Credit for Capital Charges -£3,218,477 -£3,218,477 £0 

        

  £15,399,602 £14,808,759 -£590,843 

Contribution to (+) / from (-) Earmarked Reserves £600,000 -£74,245 -£674,245 

Contribution to (+) / from (-) General Balances -£139,664 £0 £139,664 

Net Budget Requirement £15,859,939 £14,734,514 -£1,125,424 

      

RSG Settlement -£8,634,458 -£7,553,058 £1,081,400 

Council tax Compensation Grant 2011/12 -£155,037 -£155,037 £0 

Council tax Single Person Discount Review  -£52,000  

Collection Fund Surplus -£130,417 -£141,399 -£21,583 

Page 66



 

 

Investment Income -£723,407 -£439,811 £283,596 

        

Amount to be funded from Council Tax £6,216,620 £6,227,982 £217,989 

        

Potential Shortfall £0 £165,228   

        

Number of band D equivalents (taxbase confirmed in Jan 
2012) 50337 50429 92 

2012-13 Cost of Band D equivalent £123.50 £123.50   

2011-12 Cost of Band D equivalent £123.50 £123.50   

  £6,216,620 £6,227,982   
 
 

1.14 Our assumption for Council tax is that we will set a 0% increase for 2012/13. CSR2010 
confirmed that the Government will provide a revenue grant equivalent to a 2.5% increase 
in Council Tax to fund this freeze for a period of 4 years; this has therefore been included 
within the projected resources of the Council.  

 
1.15 In October 2011, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a new support for local 

authorities to help them freeze council tax in 2012/13 as well. If Cherwell District Council 
was to approve a freeze to its council tax in 2012/13 it would receive an additional grant of 
c. £156, 970 for 2012/13 only. The receipt of this additional grant has not been 
incorporated within the projected resources of the Council in this first draft of the budget.  

 
1.16 The revenue budget shows an overall 5% decrease in service expenditure in comparison 

with the 2011/12 budget.  
 
1.17 The capital charges as detailed in the table above are still to be confirmed and any 

variations will be incorporated into the final version of the budget. This represents an 
accounting entry and will not affect the bottom line. 

 
1.18 In light of the challenging financial position the Council faces in both this and forthcoming 

years, work has been in progress on the 2012/13 budget since setting the 2011/12 budget 
in March 2011.  The Council made a public promise to deliver £1m worth of savings and in 
addition has developed Building Blocks across the organisation, identifying opportunities to 
either reduce costs or increase income generated. The aim being to compensate for the 
financial pressures arising from the Comprehensive Spending review, general economic 
climate and our strategy to reduce our reliance on investment income. 

 
1.19 This first draft of the 2012/13 revenue budget demonstrates that we have delivered in 

excess of the £1m public promise (£1.1m). In addition, we have also identified £664k worth 
of additional efficiencies which have also been built into this first draft. A detailed analysis of 
the efficiencies achieved will be prepared for the final version of this budget. 

 
1.20 Table 2 on the following pages provides a further breakdown :- 
 
 
 

Page 67



 

 

Table 2 

Area Building Block Detail 
Bldg 
Block 
Ref 

£1m Public 
Promise 

Efficiencies Total  Corporate 
Community & 
Environment 

Resources Development Total 

Corporate Joint Senior Management Team Savings    £353,000  £353,000  £353,000    £353,000 

Corporate 
Joint Working - shared infrastructure, ICT 
and additional procurement savings.   £100,000  £100,000  £100,000    £100,000 

Corporate Joint Working Building Control   £30,000  £30,000  £30,000    £30,000 

Finance 

Review Single Person Discounts - 17,218 
(33%) - assume 10% withdrawn and costs 
shared with County 11 £52,000  £52,000  £52,000    £52,000 

Tourism VFM Review - Tourism 3 £25,169  £25,169   £25,169   £25,169 

Customer 
Services VFM Review - Customer Services 15 £69,077  £69,077   £69,077   £69,077 

Community 
Safety Review of Discretionary Services 28 £4,643  £4,643   £4,643   £4,643 

Vehicle 
Maintenance VFM Review - Vehicle Maintenance 6 £15,000  £15,000   £15,000   £15,000 

Environmental 
Services 

Re tender and negotiation of New 
Recyclables Contract to take advantage of 
favourable market conditions. 30 £193,957  £193,957   £193,957   £193,957 

Various Procurement Action Plan 29 £36,427  £36,427    £36,427  £36,427 

Public Protection VFM Review - Public Protection 5 £34,000  £34,000     £34,000 £34,000 

Corporate 

Change in planning fees regime will result in 
increase to fees - guidance not yet available 
but assume modest 10% - 15% uplift on 
current income  10 £80,000  £80,000     £80,000 £80,000 

Economic 
Development VFM Economic Development 4 £15,000  £15,000     £15,000 £15,000 

Corporate 

Commissioning of advisory services 
Communicated to grant recipients  - review 
all grant funding and prepare a list of 
proposed reductions 14 £111,051  £111,051     £111,051 £111,051 

EFFICIENCIES              

Community & 
Environment      £258,355 £258,355   £258,355   £258,355 

Resources      £267,293 £267,293    £267,293  £267,293 

Development      £138,343 £138,343     £138,343 £138,343 

Total     £  1,119,324 £  663,991 £1,783,315  £ 535,000 £ 566,201 £ 303,720 £ 378,394 £  1,783,315 

       30% 32% 17% 21%  

P
a

g
e
 6

8



 

 

1.21 The following table provides details of Growth items that have been built into the 2012/13 budget. 
These items represent budget pressures which are often unavoidable and have to be 
incorporated into our base revenue budget, many of which are of a significant nature. Examples 
of such are - reductions in income / funding (Revenue Support Grant) / economic pressure on 
income receivable (reduction in car park income) and additional costs incurred. They have been 
incorporated into this first draft of the budget at service level whilst those services have still 
delivered their building blocks, contribution to the Councils £1m public savings promise and 
further efficiencies.  

 
Table 3 

SERVICE AREA DETAIL 
Avoidable / 
Unavoidable  

Reduction in 
Income 

Additional 
Costs  Total 

            

Corporate - 
Executive 
Matters 

Reduction in Revenue Support 
Grant  U   £1,081,400     £1,081,400  

Corporate - 
Executive 
Matters 

Reduction in reliance on 
Investment income  A   £   303,596     £   303,596  

Vehicle Parks Reduced Car park Income  U   £   251,811     £   251,811  

Corporate Debt 
Recovery  

Reduction in Court Costs 
Recovered  U   £      77,484     £      77,484  

Corporate - 
Executive 
Matters 

Increase in Capital Cost of 
Pension  U     £   64,791   £      64,791  

Community 
Services Transition of Advisory Services  A     £   35,000   £      35,000  

Licensing Reduced Income   U   £      25,358     £      25,358  

ICT Support Gov Connect Charges   U     £   25,000   £      25,000  

Corporate Other minor growth items  U     £   18,089   £      18,089  

            

       £1,739,649   £142,880   £1,882,529  

 
1.25 In order to balance the budget a further reduction in costs or increase in income of £165,228 is 

required.  
 

1.26.1 The following areas will be considered and an estimated range of contribution to the deficit is 
included. 

 
Table 4 

AREAS FOR FURTHER  REVIEW IMPACT CONTRIBUTION RANGE 

Scrutiny Recommendations re Stationary Budgets Reduce Costs Up to £5k reduced costs 

Scrutiny Recommendations re Communications Reduce Costs To be agreed 

Scrutiny Recommendations re Administration Review Reduce Costs Up to £100k reduced costs 

Revenue Implications of Capital Programme Increase / Reduce Costs Up to £76k reduced costs 

Council Tax Compensation Grant Increase Income  Up to £156k 

Review of Professional Fees Reduce Costs Up to £50k reduced costs 

 
 
1.27 In addition further work will continue on identifying additional budget reductions for future years 

and these will be detailed in the Medium Term Forecast which will be updated and presented as 
part of the final budget report. 
 
Risk 
 

1.28 As ever the Council needs to plan its budget amidst a high degree of uncertainty, which brings 
with it risks. As well as specific mitigating actions on individual issues, risks are also addressed 
as part of our corporate risk register, proactive budget monitoring, service planning process and 
consideration of risk in all key decisions and committee reports. 

 

Page 69



 

 

1.29 The draft budget includes a specific service risk provision of £145,000 and a general provision of 
£147,000 which equates to 1% of projected net expenditure and is in line with our budget 
planning. 

 
1.30 A full appraisal of risk will be included in the final budget report detailing mitigations and a 

sensitivity analysis will be included to calculate the specific risk provisions. 
 
Reserves 

 
1.31 In addition to the robust risk control measures it will be necessary for the Council to maintain a 

general fund general balance as the ultimate safeguard. This balance is projected to be circa 
£1m. A full review of Council reserves will be detailed in the February report to the Executive. 

 
Further Document Information 

Detail 
 

 

Scrutiny Reviews 
 

27/09/2011 , 11/10/2011 , 20/10/2011 , 10/11/2011 
22/11/2011 

Executive Reports 5/9/2011 Budget Strategy & Guidelines 
 

Building Blocks 
 

 

£1m Public Promise  

 
 

Page 70



 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

D
R
A
F
T
 

 D
e
ta
il
e
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 u
n
d
e
rp
in
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
il
l 
b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 i
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
. 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
 

A
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
o
f 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 

B
 

A
 C
le
a
n
e
r 
G
re
e
n
e
r 
C
h
e
rw

e
ll
 

C
 

A
 S
a
fe
, 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 T
h
ri
v
in
g
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
 

A
n
 A
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le
 

d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 D
is
tr
ic
t.
  

 •
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

fo
c
u
s
in
g
 o
n
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 p
re
ve
n
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
d
vi
c
e
 a
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
le
ve
ls
 o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

 •
 

W
o
rk
 w
ith
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
yo
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 n
o
t 
in
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t 
o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
 

 •
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
to
 w
o
rk
 (
jo
b
 c
lu
b
s
 

a
n
d
 a
p
p
re
n
tic
e
s
h
ip
s
) 
 a
n
d
 p
re
p
a
re
 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 G
o
ve
rn
m
e
n
t 
re
fo
rm
 t
o
 

w
e
lf
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
ys
te
m
  

 •
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 B
ri
g
h
te
r 
F
u
tu
re
s
 in
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
  

P
ro
v
id
e
 e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 
w
a
s
te
 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
  

 •
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 r
e
c
yc
lin
g
 

ra
te
 t
o
 a
b
o
ve
 6
0
%
 

 •
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 

s
e
n
t 
to
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

 •
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
h
ig
h
 l
e
ve
ls
 

o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 

re
c
yc
lin
g
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 t
h
ri
v
in
g
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
. 

 •
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
re
c
re
a
tio
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
vi
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
iti
e
s
 o
f 
yo
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
 

 •
 

W
o
rk
 w
ith
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y 
lo
w
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 in
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 
 

 •
 

W
o
rk
 w
ith
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
  
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
lic
 

h
e
a
lth
, 
s
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
  

 

P
ro
v
id
e
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 a
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
ll
y
 

s
o
u
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
, 
m
in
im

is
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

o
f 
s
m
a
ll
e
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 o
n
 f
ro
n
tl
in
e
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 •
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
 e
ff
e
c
tiv
e
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

G
o
ve
rn
m
e
n
t 
w
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm
  

 •
 

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 im

p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

th
e
 L
o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 R
e
vi
e
w
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
lis
a
tio
n
 o
f 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

 •
 

S
e
c
u
re
 s
a
vi
n
g
s
 o
f 
£
8
0
0
 -
 £
1
m
 t
a
k
in
g
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 n
a
tio
n
a
l c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
ve
rn
m
e
n
t 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

 •
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 m
a
tc
h
e
d
 t
o
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
tie
s
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
tin
g
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
m
o
tin
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
m
m
itm

e
n
t 
to
 

va
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y 
a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
tiv
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

 

B
a
la
n
c
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 g
ro
w
th
. 

 •
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
x
 n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s
 in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 m
a
jo
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 (
m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A
M
R
- 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s
, 

n
u
m
e
ri
c
a
l 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 

 •
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
x
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
m
e
s
 in
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

T
a
rg
e
t 
to
 b
e
 c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
  

•
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 lo
c
a
l e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

th
ro
u
g
h
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 

in
w
a
rd
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
  

 •
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

W
o
rk
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 o
u
r 
s
tr
e
e
ts
, 
to
w
n
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 a
re
 c
le
a
n
, 
w
e
ll
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
. 
 

 •
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 w
ith
 s
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
  

 •
 

W
o
rk
 w
ith
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
iti
e
s
 t
o
 

c
o
n
tin
u
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 l
it
te
r 
b
lit
ze
s
  

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
fo
r 
p
ro
fi
t 

s
e
c
to
rs
 t
o
 p
la
y
 a
n
 a
c
ti
v
e
 r
o
le
 i
n
 

th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
  

 •
 

W
o
rk
 w
ith
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r 
to
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 a
d
vi
s
o
ry
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
 

 •
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t 

 
•
 

A
d
o
p
t 
a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
  
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 c
o
s
ts
. 
 

 •
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t/
e
m
b
e
d
 s
h
a
re
d
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 

s
ys
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 

 •
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
 a
 s
h
a
re
d
 I
C
T
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 •
 

E
x
p
lo
re
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 w
ith
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 

s
h
a
re
 o
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 

a
n
d
 m
a
x
im
is
in
g
 in
c
o
m
e
 

   

Page 71



 

A
 

A
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
o
f 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 

B
 

A
 C
le
a
n
e
r 
G
re
e
n
e
r 
C
h
e
rw

e
ll
 

C
 

A
 S
a
fe
, 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 T
h
ri
v
in
g
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
 

A
n
 A
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
w
it
h
 H
C
A
 i
n
ve
s
tm
e
n
t 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
(3
1
 

d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
 i
n
 1
2
/1
3
) 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y 
a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
s
 lo
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

  •
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 a
 d
ra
ft
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it 
fo
r 

a
d
o
p
tio
n
  

 •
 

P
re
p
a
re
 a
n
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 

C
h
e
rw
e
ll 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
p
a
re
 f
o
r 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

L
e
v
y 
 

 •
 

S
e
c
u
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y 
fo
r 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

 •
 

P
ro
te
c
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y 
o
f 
th
e
 

b
u
ilt
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
b
y 
c
o
m
p
le
tio
n
 o
f 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 R
e
vi
e
w
s
 a
n
d
 s
tr
o
n
g
 

d
e
s
ig
n
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
n
e
w
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
  

 

W
o
rk
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 o
u
r 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

n
a
tu
ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 l
im

it
 o
u
r 
u
s
e
 

o
f 
n
a
tu
ra
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

o
th
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
to
 d
o
 t
h
e
 

s
a
m
e
. 

 •
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
a
rb
o
n
 

fo
o
tp
ri
n
t 
b
y 
x
x
%
 (
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 

b
u
ild
in
g
s
, 
fl
e
e
t 
m
ile
a
g
e
 e
tc
) 

(t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 b
e
 c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
) 

 •
 

W
o
rk
 w
ith
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
ve
 

th
e
 e
n
e
rg
y 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y 
o
f 
h
o
m
e
s
 

a
n
d
 e
n
a
b
le
 m
o
re
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
ve
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 e
n
e
rg
y 
b
ill
s
 

 

P
ro
v
id
e
 g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
li
ty
 r
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
is
tr
ic
t.
 

 •
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 S
o
u
th
 w
e
s
t 
B
ic
e
s
te
r 

s
p
o
rt
s
 p
itc
h
e
s
  

 •
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 

vi
s
it
s
/u
s
a
g
e
 t
o
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
le
is
u
re
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 

 •
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

to
 s
e
c
u
re
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 f
u
tu
re
 o
f 

B
a
n
b
u
ry
 M
u
s
e
u
m
 a
n
d
 

m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
 

 

D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 t
ru
s
te
d
 t
o
 a
c
t 

p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
 b
y
 b
e
in
g
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 
a
b
o
u
t 

o
u
r 
c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
 

 •
 

Im
p
ro
ve
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
tio
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic
 a
b
o
u
t 
o
u
r 
c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
, 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
 

 •
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 in
 a
 c
o
s
t 

e
ff
e
c
tiv
e
 m
a
n
n
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 

a
 g
o
o
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

W
o
rk
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 v
ib
ra
n
c
y
 

o
f 
o
u
r 
to
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 u
rb
a
n
 a
re
a
s
. 

 •
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
 B
ic
e
s
te
r 
T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

th
e
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
b
u
ild
in
g
  

 •
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 a
 M
a
s
te
rp
la
n
 f
o
r 
B
ic
e
s
te
r 

 •
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
a
n
a
l 
s
id
e
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 in
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
 a
n
d
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 B
o
lto
n
 R
o
a
d
 a
re
a
 

in
 B
a
n
b
u
ry
. 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
E
c
o
-B
ic
e
s
te
r,
 

c
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
 c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o
f 
g
re
e
n
 o
r 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

li
v
in
g
. 
 

 

•
 

W
o
rk
 w
ith
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

m
a
s
te
rp
la
n
 f
o
r 
E
c
o
-B
ic
e
s
te
r 
 

 •
 

S
ta
rt
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 s
ite
 f
o
r 
in
iti
a
l 
$
0
0
 

h
o
m
e
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 

 
•
 

E
n
s
u
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
lo
c
a
l p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 in
 

th
e
 E
c
o
-B
ic
e
s
te
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
a
c
il
it
ie
s
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
  

  •
 

W
o
rk
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
c
tiv
e
 a
n
d
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
lif
e
s
ty
le
s
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 

o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
  

 •
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
N
H
S
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 

a
n
d
 d
e
ve
lo
p
 h
e
a
lth
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
t 

th
e
 H
o
rt
o
n
 G
e
n
e
ra
l H
o
s
p
it
a
l  

 •
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
w
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
ve
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 

B
ic
e
s
te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 

a
re
a
 

W
o
rk
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 w
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
 g
o
o
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 •
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 h
ig
h
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

w
ith
 o
u
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 
•
 

Im
p
ro
ve
  
le
ve
ls
 o
f 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 w
ith
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
  
in
fo
rm
a
tio
n
 p
ro
vi
d
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
 

 •
 

Im
p
ro
ve
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 o
u
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

b
y 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 o
n
lin
e
 p
a
ym

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

 

Page 72



Appendix 3 
Frontline Service Priority Framework for 2012/13 

 

Service Area  
Priority Ranking  

2010/11 

Priority Ranking  

2011/12 

Priority Ranking  

2012/13  

Refuse collection & Recycling 1 1  1 ó 

Strategic Housing  1 1  1 ó 

Economic Development and Regeneration  2 2  1 ö 

Anti-social behaviour  1 2  2 ó 

Sports facilities  3 3  3 ó 

Local Development 3 3 3 ó 

Community Development 3 3 3 ó 

Housing Needs 4 3  3 ó 

Private Sector Housing  4 3  3 ó 

Leisure development  3 4 4 ó 

Local Transport and Concessionary Fares 4 4 4 ó 

Revenues & Benefits 4 4 4 ó 

Cleansing 4 4 4 ó 

Environmental Protection 4 4 4 ó 

Rural Areas 4 4 4 ó 

Car Parking 4 4 4 ó 

Estates 4 4 4 ó 

Safer communities 3 5 5 ó 

Health Promotion 3 5 5 ó 

Building Control and Engineering 5 5 5 ó 

Public Protection 5 5 5 ó 

Conservation & Urban Centres 4 5 5 ó 

Planning & Enforcement:  5 5 5 ó 

Arts 4 4 6 ø 

Planning control 6 6 6 ó 

Diversity and equality  6 6 6 ó 

Landscape 7 7 7 ó 

Banbury Museum 7 7 7 ó 

Tourism 7 7 7 ó 

Licensing 7 7 7 ó 

 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 &
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y

 B
o

a
rd

 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 4
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 

  R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

ro
c

e
s

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 h
a

s
 i

n
v

o
lv

e
d

 a
 r

e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 o
f 

£
1

5
.8

m
 w

it
h

 a
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
D

is
c

re
ti

o
n

a
ry

 a
re

a
s

 o
f 

s
p

e
n

d
. 

 D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 s

p
e

n
d

 f
o

r 
C

h
e

rw
e

ll 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 t

o
ta

lle
d

 a
 n

e
t 

e
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 o

f 
£

3
.1

m
 (

2
7

%
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il’
s

 n
e

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t)
. 

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
a

p
it

a
ls

 b
id

s
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
d

 a
s

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 p

ro
c

e
s

s
, 

th
e

 E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 i
s

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y

 B
o

a
rd

: 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

P
ro
je
c
te
d
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

in
c
o
m
e
/s
a
v
in
g
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

1
. 

T
h

a
t 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

b
id

s
 b

e
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
d

 i
n

 
th

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

: 

i.
 

B
io

m
a

s
s

 H
e

a
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
B

ic
e

s
te

r 
L

e
is

u
re

 
C

e
n

tr
e

 

ii.
 

R
e

c
y

c
lin

g
 B

a
n

k
 R

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

iii
. 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 V

e
h

ic
le

 
R

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

iv
. 

E
n

e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y

 P
ro

je
c

ts
 

v
. 

F
e

rr
is

to
n

 R
o

o
f 

R
e

p
a

ir
s

 

v
i.

 
T

h
o

rp
e

 W
a

y
 R

o
o

f 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
  

 B
id

 i
. 

T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
n

o
 m

o
n

e
y

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 s

p
e

n
t 

o
n

 h
e

a
ti

n
g

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

th
e

 r
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

B
ic

e
s

te
r 

L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

. 
B

io
m

a
s

s
 h

e
a

ti
n

g
 w

o
u

ld
 s

a
v

e
 

£
5

6
k

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

 a
n

d
 p

a
y

b
a

c
k

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

d
 i

n
 8

.6
 y

e
a

rs
. 

B
id

s
 i

i 
–

 v
i.

 T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

it
 w

a
s

 b
e

tt
e

r 
to

 i
n

v
e

s
t 

in
 r

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 f
a

c
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 e

x
p

e
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
p

a
ir

 b
ill

s
. 

B
id

s
 v

ii 
a

n
d

 v
iii

. 
T

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 G

ra
n

ts
 

re
m

a
in

e
d

 s
ta

ti
c

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 b

u
t 

th
a

t 
C

D
C

 h
a

d
 c

u
t 

it
s

 
c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
D

is
a

b
le

d
 F

a
c

ili
ti

e
s

 G
ra

n
ts

 b
y

 1
5

%
 i

n
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
. 

It
 w

a
s

 
a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

d
 G

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
m

a
in

 s
ta

ti
c

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
g

re
e

d
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 B

id
s

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ro
v

a
l 

b
u

t 
th

e
y

 w
o

u
ld

 l
o

o
k

 a
t 

-  £
5

6
,0

0
0

 

 

Page 75



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 &
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y

 B
o

a
rd

 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

v
ii.

 D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 G

ra
n

ts
 

v
iii

. 
M

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 D
is

a
b

le
d

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 G

ra
n

ts
 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

a
s

 i
n

 m
o

re
 d

e
ta

il 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

s
c

ru
ti

n
y

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

. 
 

  

2
. 

T
h

a
t 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

b
id

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i

n
 

th
e

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 s

u
b

je
c

t 
to

 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
ir

c
u

la
ti

n
g

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 i
n

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

0
 

a
n

d
 m

o
d

e
lli

n
g

, 
to

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

b
e

in
g

 s
a

ti
s

fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 

i.
 

C
h

e
rw

e
ll 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 L
e

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

in
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

a
s

 s
o

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
 

m
in

d
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

id
 f

o
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
b

u
t 

re
q

u
e

s
te

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 v
ia

 e
m

a
il.

 

 

3
. 

T
h

a
t 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

b
id

 n
o

t 
b

e
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
d

 
in

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

: 

i.
 

B
ic

e
s

te
r 

M
e

th
o

d
is

t 
C

h
u

rc
h

 –
 

R
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
F

a
c

ili
ti

e
s

 

 T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 i

n
v

e
s

ti
g

a
te

 
o

th
e

r 
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

q
u

it
a

b
le

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 2
 o

th
e

r 
c

h
u

rc
h

e
s

 w
h

o
 h

a
v

e
 

re
c

e
iv

e
d

 s
im

ila
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
. 

 

4
. 

T
h

a
t 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 
c

a
p

it
a

l 
b

id
s

 b
e

 d
e

fe
rr

e
d

: 

i.
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 I
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c

e
 H

u
b

 

ii.
 

D
is

a
s

te
r 

R
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 –

 
V

m
w

a
re

 S
it

e
 R

e
c

o
v

e
ry

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

iii
. 

T
h

in
 C

lie
n

t 
R

o
llo

u
t 

–
 Q

u
e

s
t 

V
ir

tu
a

l 
D

e
s

k
to

p
 I

n
fr

a
s

tu
c

tu
re

 

iv
. 

IT
 C

o
re

 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

 –
 

N
e

w
 V

ir
tu

a
l 

S
e

rv
e

rs
, 

S
A

N
 (

S
to

ra
g

e
 

A
re

a
 N

e
tw

o
rk

) 
a

n
d

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 

  B
id

 i
. 

T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 b

id
 b

e
 r

e
-e

v
a

lu
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
b

a
c

k
 

to
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

’s
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s

id
e

ra
ti

o
n

. 

 B
id

s
 i

i 
–

 v
i.

 T
h

e
s

e
 b

id
s

 r
e

la
te

 t
o

 I
C

T
. 

T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

c
o

n
s

id
e

ra
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
th

e
s

e
 b

id
s

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
fe

rr
e

d
 p

e
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 I
C

T
 I

n
s

o
u

rc
e

 a
n

d
 S

h
a

re
d

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 C

a
s

e
. 

   

- 

Page 76



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 &
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y

 B
o

a
rd

 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

v
. 

E
x

te
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
M

ic
ro

s
o

ft
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
(S

o
ft

w
a

re
 l

ic
e

n
s

in
g

) 

v
i.

 
C

o
re

 S
o

ft
w

a
re

 A
rc

h
it

e
c

tu
re

 

v
ii.

 
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

y
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 

   M
e

m
b

e
rs

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
is

 b
id

 b
e

 
s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

 

D
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 S
p
e
n
d
 >
£
2
0
0
k
 

5
. 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 F
u

n
c

ti
o

n
: 

T
h

a
t 

a
 1

0
%

 s
a

v
in

g
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

lla
b

le
 c

o
s

ts
 b

e
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y

 
1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
2

. 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
x

. 
£

9
9

,5
4

0
. 

£
9

9
,5

4
0

 

S
ta
ff
 T
h
in
k
 T
a
n
k
 S
a
v
in
g
s
 

6
. 

T
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

s
ta

ti
o

n
e

ry
 s

p
e

n
d

 
s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 1

0
%

 
A

 1
0

%
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 w

o
u

ld
 s

a
v

e
 £

5
,0

0
0

 
£

5
,0

0
0

 

7
. 

T
h

a
t 

fr
e

e
 d

o
g

 w
a

s
te

 b
a

g
s

 b
e

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 
C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
s

k
s

  
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 t

o
 i

n
v

e
s

ti
g

a
te

 m
a

k
in

g
 d

o
g

 w
a

s
te

 b
a

g
s

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

th
e

r 
o

u
tl

e
ts

 (
i.

e
. 

v
e

ts
, 

a
n

im
a

l 
c

h
a

ri
ty

 s
h

o
p

s
) 

w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 
re

le
a

s
e

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

 o
f 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
s

 

 

D
e
fe
rr
e
d
 I
te
m
s
 

T
h

e
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a

rd
 d

e
fe

rr
e

d
 m

a
k

in
g

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i

te
m

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
b

e
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 

D
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 S
p
e
n
d
 >
£
2
0
0
k

 

1
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 –
 C

o
n

tr
o

lla
b

le
 /

 
U

n
c

o
n

tr
o

lla
b

le
 c

o
s

ts
 

T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

 f
u

ll 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
a

s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

. 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 b
ri

n
g

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 d

e
ta

ili
n

g
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
c

o
u

ld
 s

a
v

e
 2

5
%

 o
f 

it
s

 c
o

n
tr

o
lla

b
le

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

’s
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
  

 

2
. 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
h

e
rw

e
ll 

L
in

k
 w

it
h

 E
le

c
to

ra
l 

R
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 /

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

ill
s

 (
L

in
k

e
d

 t
o

 
T

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r:

 

•
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
a

d
v

e
rt

s
 /

 f
ly

e
rs

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

 C
h

e
rw

e
ll 

L
in

k
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 

 

Page 77



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 &
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y

 B
o

a
rd

 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 a
b

o
v

e
) 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 c
o

s
ts

 

•
 

c
o

n
s

id
e

r 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

o
f 

s
h

a
ri

n
g

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 c
o

s
ts

 w
it

h
 S

o
u

th
 

N
o

rt
h

a
m

p
to

n
s

h
ir

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il 

C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

ro
c

e
s

s
 t

h
e

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y

 
c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
s

 b
e

lo
w

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
. 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 r
e

a
c

h
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
/c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
s

 a
n

d
 a

re
 

c
h

o
s

e
 t

o
 s

u
b

m
it

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v

e
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

, 
w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 

c
o

n
s

id
e

ra
ti

o
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

ir
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
d

is
c

u
s

s
io

n
s

. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 A
re
a
 /
 I
s
s
u
e
  

C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 /
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

D
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 S
p
e
n
d
 >
£
2
0
0
k

 

1
. 

S
tr

e
e

t 
W

a
rd

e
n

s
 

T
h

e
 R

&
P

S
B

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 n
o

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 

T
h

is
 i

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
 i

n
v

a
lu

a
b

le
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

y
 r

e
s

id
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
t 

w
a

s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 o
r 

re
m

o
v

e
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 T

e
a

m
 h

a
d

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 4
 t

o
 3

 i
n

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

. 
(A

ls
o

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 a
s

 a
 

S
ta

ff
 T

h
in

k
 T

a
n

k
 S

a
v

in
g

) 

2
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 

T
h

e
 R

&
P

S
B

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 n
o

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 a

s
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 h

a
d

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 b
e

e
n

 
g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 b
u

ild
in

g
 b

lo
c

k
 1

4
 

3
. 

W
o

o
d

g
re

e
n

 L
e

is
u

re
 

T
h

e
 R

&
P

S
B

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 n
o

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 a

s
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri

n
g

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

a
s

 b
e

in
g

 d
ra

ft
e

d
  

4
. 

S
p

ic
e

b
a

ll 
S

p
o

rt
s

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

T
h

e
 R

&
P

S
B

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 n
o

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 a

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
v

ie
w

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

. 
T

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

 t
h

is
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

. 

5
. 

B
a

n
b

u
ry

 M
u

s
e

u
m

 
T

h
e

 R
&

P
S

B
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

to
 m

a
k

e
 n

o
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 a
s

 i
t 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b

je
c

t 
to

 a
 V

a
lu

e
 

fo
r 

M
o

n
e

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

tr
u

s
t 

s
ta

tu
s

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

. 
T

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

 t
h

is
 t

o
 

th
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 

6
. 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
T

h
e

 R
&

P
S

B
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

to
 m

a
k

e
 n

o
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

 
q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

 r
e

p
o

rt
 b

e
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
c

ru
ti

n
y

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 i

n
w

a
rd

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 

Page 78



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 &
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y

 B
o

a
rd

 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

p
ro

je
c

ts
 d

e
ta

ili
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 /
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
/ 

s
u

c
c

e
s

s
 a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 p
la

n
s

  

7
. 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 C
o

s
t 

T
re

n
d

s
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 t

o
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 

T
h

e
 R

&
P

S
B

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
s

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
o

s
ts

. 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 B
o

a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
is

 a
n

n
u

a
lly

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
o

d
e

l 
to

 t
h

e
ir

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

  

8
. 

T
o

u
ri

s
t 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 /

 C
o

u
rt

y
a

rd
 

T
h

e
 R

&
P

S
B

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 w
o

u
ld

 a
d

d
 t

h
is

 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
 

re
v

ie
w

 

S
ta
ff
 T
h
in
k
 T
a
n
k
 S
a
v
in
g
s
 

1
. 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 B
la

c
k

b
e

rr
y

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
T

h
e

 r
e

tu
rn

 o
f 

u
n

u
s

e
d

 B
la

c
k

b
e

rr
ie

s
 w

o
u

ld
 o

n
ly

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 o
f 

£
2

0
0

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 w

a
s

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 
n

o
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

in
 p

u
rs

u
in

g
 t

h
is

. 
A

t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
e

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 R
&

P
S

B
 a

n
 e

m
a

il 
h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

n
t 

to
 a

ll 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ti

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

y
 u

n
u

s
e

d
 B

la
c

k
b

e
rr

ie
s

, 
la

p
to

p
s

 a
n

d
 P

C
’s

 b
e

 r
e

tu
rn

e
d

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 
g

e
n

e
ra

te
 a

 s
a

v
in

g
 i

n
 l

ic
e

n
c

e
s

 e
tc

. 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
re

q
u

e
s

t 
to

 b
e

 s
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 

2
. 

C
e

a
s

e
 w

e
b

c
a

s
ti

n
g

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

b
c

a
s

ti
n

g
 o

f 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s

 w
a

s
 a

 v
a

lu
a

b
le

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 s
u

g
g

e
s

te
d

 
m

o
re

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 w
e

b
c

a
s

t 

3
. 

S
ta

ff
 h

o
lid

a
y

 /
 p

a
y

 f
re

e
z

e
 /

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
e

e
k

 
T

h
e

 R
&

P
S

B
 r

e
c

o
g

n
is

e
 t

h
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 s

u
g

g
e

s
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

e
s

t 
th

a
t 

th
e

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
s

u
b

m
it

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 i
n

 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
e

e
k

, 
s

ta
ff

 p
a

y
 f

re
e

z
e

s
 a

n
d

 b
u

y
in

g
/s

e
lli

n
g

  
h

o
lid

a
y

  

4
. 

F
a

s
t 

T
ra

c
k

in
g

 L
ic

e
n

c
e

/P
la

n
n

in
g

 
A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s

 
N

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

c
ti

o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 i

s
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 

5
. 

R
e

m
o

v
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
W

a
rd

e
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

T
h

e
 R

&
P

S
B

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 n
o

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 

T
h

is
 i

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
 i

n
v

a
lu

a
b

le
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

y
 r

e
s

id
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
t 

w
a

s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 o
r 

re
m

o
v

e
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 T

e
a

m
 h

a
d

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 4
 t

o
 3

 i
n

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

6
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 C

C
T

V
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 C

o
s

ts
 

T
h

e
 R

&
P

S
B

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 n
o

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 a

t 
th

is
 t

im
e

. 
It

 w
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 a

w
a

it
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 T
h

a
m

e
s

 V
a

lle
y

 P
o

lic
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 w

it
h

in
 C

D
C

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Page 79



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 &
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y

 B
o

a
rd

 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

7
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 O

p
e

n
in

g
 H

o
u

rs
 o

f 
L

in
k

 P
o

in
t 

T
h

e
 R

&
P

S
B

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 n
o

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 

A
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 L

in
k

 P
o

in
t 

o
p

e
n

in
g

 t
im

e
s

 w
a

s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
d

 i
n

 b
u

ild
in

g
 b

lo
c

k
 5

 a
n

d
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v

e
 

O
th
e
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 C

o
m

p
a

ri
s

o
n

s
 

T
h

e
 R

&
P

S
B

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

C
h

e
rw

e
ll 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
c

il 
a

n
d

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri

n
g

/l
o

c
a

l 
c

o
u

n
c

ils
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

w
h

e
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 w
a

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i

t 
b

e
 c

ir
c

u
la

te
d

 t
o

 a
ll 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

. 

  

Page 80


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report
	Appendix 1 - Cherwell District Council Housing Land Supply Position (October 2011)

	7 Performance and Risk Management Framework 2011/12 Second Quarter Performance Report
	Appendix 1 Corporate Scorecard
	Appendix 2 Corporate Plan
	Appendix 3 Priority Service Indicators
	Appendix 4 Corporate Improvement Plan
	Appendix 5 Corp Equalities Plan
	Appendix 6 Brighter Futures
	Appendix 7 Significant Partnerships
	Appendix 8 Risk Management

	8 Draft Budget 1, Corporate Plan and Service Plans 2012 - 2013
	Appendix 1 - Draft 1 Revenue Budget Analysis 2012-2013 Final
	Appendix 2 - Corporate Plan  2012-2013
	Appendix 3 - Service Priority Ranking
	Appendix 4 - RPSB Budget Scrutiny Recommendations


